

CITY OF PROVIDENCE  
RHODE ISLAND



CITY COUNCIL  
JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS

---

No. 93 City Council Regular Meeting, Thursday, May 21, 1998, 7:30 o'clock P.M. (E.D.T.)

---

PRESIDING

COUNCIL PRESIDENT

EVELYN V. FARGNOLI

ROLL CALL

IN CITY COUNCIL

JUN 18 1998

APPROVED:

*Michael X. Clement* CLERK

Present: Council President Fagnoli, Councilmen Allen, Clarkin, DeLuca, Councilwoman DiRuzzo, Councilmen Hassett, Igliozi, Jackson, Lombardi, Mancini, Councilwomen Nolan, Romano, Williams and Young—14.

Absent: Councilman Rollins—1.

## INVOCATION

The Invocation is given by COUNCILWOMAN CAROL A. ROMANO.

## PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

COUNCILWOMAN RITA M. WILLIAMS leads the members of the City Council and the Assemblage in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.

## APPROVAL OF RECORD

The Journal of Proceedings No. 90 of the Regular Meeting of the City Council held Thursday, April 16, 1998, is approved as printed, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS.

## APPOINTMENT BY HIS HONOR THE MAYOR

Communication dated April 24, 1998, Informing the Honorable Members of the City Council that pursuant to Sections 302(b) and 1104 of the Providence Home Rule Charter of 1980, he is this day reappointing Joshua Teverow, Esquire, of 2 Wriston Drive, Providence, Rhode Island, as a Member of the Civic Center Authority for a term to expire in May 2001, and respectfully submits the same for approval.

April 24, 1998

The Honorable Members  
The City Council of the  
City of Providence  
City Hall  
Providence, RI 02903

Dear Honorable Members:

Pursuant to Sections 302 (b) and 1104 of the Providence Home Rule Charter of 1980, I am this day reappointing Joshua Teverow, Esq. of 2 Wriston Drive, Providence, Rhode Island, a member of the Civic Center Authority for a term to expire in May, 2001.

Sincerely,

VINCENT A. CIANCI, JR.  
*Mayor of Providence*

Received.

## ORDINANCES SECOND READING

**The following Ordinances were in City Council May 7, 1998, Read and Passed the First Time, and are severally returned for Passage the Second Time:**

An Ordinance in amendment of Chapter 564 of the Ordinances of the City of Providence entitled: "The City of Providence Zoning Ordinance" approved June 27, 1994, and amended May 26, 1995, by amending Providence Zoning District Map Number 68 of the

Official Zoning Map by changing Zoning District Designation of Lots 502, 503, 504, 505, 506, 507, 508, 509, 740, 749 and 750 from R-3 to C-2.

*Be it ordained by the City of Providence:*

*Section 1.* The Providence Zoning Ordinance Chapter 1994-24, No. 365, approved June 27, 1994, as amended shall be further amended as follows:

*Section 103 A)* of the Official Zoning Map — Providence Zoning District Map 68, dated October 24, 1991, and amended June 27, 1994, shall be further amended as follows:

Change from R-3 Three Family District to C-2 General Commercial District: Lots 502, 503, 504, 505, 506, 507, 508, 509, 740, 749 and 750 on Providence Zoning District Map 68 located at Douglas and Chalkstone Avenues.

*Section 2.* This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage.

An Ordinance in amendment of Chapter 564 of the Ordinances of the City of Providence entitled: "The City of Providence Zoning Ordinance" approved June 27, 1994, as amended, by amending Providence Zoning District Maps Number 107 and 108 of the Official Zoning Map by changing the Zoning District Designation of certain lots from R-2, Two Family District and R-3, Three Family District to C-1, Limited Commercial District.

*Be it ordained by the City of Providence:*

*Section 1:* Chapter 564 of the Ordinances of the City of Providence, entitled "The City of Providence Zoning Ordinance" approved June 27, 1994, as amended, is hereby amended by changing the zoning district designation of following properties:

<i>Plat/Lot</i>	<i>Address</i>
107/148	493 Plainfield St.
107/149	489-91 Plainfield St.
107/573	485-7 Plainfield St. (portion)
107/574	479-81 Plainfield St.
107/153	471 Plainfield St.
107/154	467 Plainfield St.
107/155	455-63 Plainfield St.
107/298	449-51 Plainfield St.
107/299	445 Plainfield St.
107/51	435-41 Plainfield St. (portion)
107/57	433 Plainfield St.
107/100	425 Plainfield St.
107/302	417 Plainfield St.
107/303	411 Plainfield St.
of the Zoning District Map Number 107 of the Official Zoning Maps from R-2, Two Family District to C-1 Limited Commercial District and	
<i>Plat/Lot</i>	<i>Address</i>
108/129	55 Ralph St.
108/156	474 Plainfield St.
108/157	468 Plainfield St.

108/178

462-6 Plainfield St.

108/179

458 Plainfield St.

of the Providence Zoning Map Number 108, R-3, Three Family District to C-1, Limited Commercial District.

Section 2: This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage.

An Ordinance in amendment of Chapter 1987-10 of the Ordinances of the City of Providence, as approved May 11, 1987, as amended in Chapter 1988-45, November 23, 1988, entitled, "An Ordinance creating and establishing an Economic Development Zone within the City of Providence" pursuant to 3-7-16.4 of the General Laws of the State of Rhode Island, as amended.

*Be it ordained by the City of Providence:*

Whereas, The City Council, pursuant to Rhode Island General Laws Section 3-7-16.4, created and established economic development zones 1 through 4 in the city of Providence for the purpose of encouraging commercial investment; and

Whereas, The boundaries of said economic development zones were set forth in Exhibit A of Chapter 1988-45, as amended; and,

Whereas, In the Jewelry District neighborhood which is located in economic development zone no. 1 there is concern about the number of economic development zone liquor licenses and regular liquor licenses that have been issued and the potential for future economic

development zone liquor licenses that may issued; and,

Whereas, The City Council, in order to address the concerns of the Jewelry District neighborhood desires to modify the boundaries of economic development zone no 1 by deleting the Jewelry District neighborhood from the zone;

Now, therefore, be it ordained by the City of Providence:

That economic development zone "Number 1" is hereby amended pursuant to R.I.G.L. 3-7-16.4 to include the area described as follows:

Beginning at a point in the westerly boundary of Census Tract 8 at the intersection of Aborn Street and I-95; then easterly along Aborn Street until it intersects with Sabin Street; then across Sabin Street to the intersection with Empire Street; then south easterly along Empire and Chestnut Street to the intersection with I-95; then easterly along I-95 to the intersection with the Providence River; then northerly along the centerline of the Providence River to a point in the river where the extension of Planet Street intersects with the centerline of the river; then easterly along the extension of Plant Street to the intersection with South Main Street; then northerly along South and North Main Street to the intersection with Park Row East; then westerly along Park Row East to the intersection with Canal Street; then northerly along Canal Street to the intersection with Smith Street; then westerly along Smith Street to the intersection with the Amtrak mainline; then northerly along the Amtrak mainline to the intersection with Orms Street; then easterly along Orms Street to the intersection with Charles Street; then northerly along Charles Street to the intersection with I-

95; then northerly along I-95 to the intersection with the West River; then westerly along the West River to the intersection with Charles Street; then southerly along Charles Street to the intersection with the Amtrak mainline; then southerly along the Amtrak mainline to the intersection with I-95; then southerly along I-95 to the intersection with the extension of Harris Avenue; then westerly along the extension of Harris Avenue and Harris Avenue to the intersection with Atwells Avenue; then easterly along Atwells Avenue to the intersection with Knight Street; then southerly along Knight Street to the intersection with a line running parallel to Atwells Avenue one hundred (100) feet southerly from the center line of said Atwells Avenue; then along said line, running parallel to Atwells Avenue one hundred (100) feet southerly from the center line of said Atwells Avenue, to the intersection with I-95; then northerly along I-95 to the point of beginning.

Said area is designated Economic Development Zone No. 1 for the purpose of licensing

Class ED Retail Alcoholic Beverages Licenses. Economic Development Zone No. 1 is shown in its entirety on the attached map Attachment A.

**Severally Read and Collectively Passed, the Second Time, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS, by the following Roll Call Vote:**

**Ayes:** Council President Fagnoli, Councilmen Allen, Clarkin, DeLuca, Councilwoman DiRuzzo, Councilmen Hassett, Igliazzi, Jackson, Lombardi, Mancini, Councilwomen Nolan, Romano, Williams and Young—14.

**Noes:** None.

**Absent:** Councilman Rollins—1.

**The motion for Passage the Second Time is Sustained.**

**The following Ordinance was in City Council July 14, 1997, Read and Passed the First Time, and is returned for Passage the Second Time, as amended**

An Ordinance in amendment of certain Sections of Chapter 17, Article IV of the Code of Ordinances entitled "Retirement System", as amended.

*Be it ordained by the City of Providence:*

**Section 1.** Article VI of Chapter 17 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Providence is hereby amended to read as follows:

**Section 17-181. Definitions.**

The following words and phrases as used in this Article, unless a different meaning is plainly required by the context, shall have the following meanings:

**Accumulated Contributions** shall mean the sum of all regular and excess amounts deducted from the compensation of a member, or credited

to his individual account in the annuity savings fund, together with regular interest thereon.

*Annuity* shall mean payments for life derived from the accumulated contributions of a member. All annuities shall be paid in equal monthly installments. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for the purposes of paragraphs (b) and (c) of ~~subdivisions~~ **subsections** (2) and (4) of section 17-189 of this article, "annuity" shall mean the payments for life provided by the member's accumulated contributions attributable to his required regular deductions, including special contributions or deductions under the provisions of section 17-188 of this article and including the amount by which his required regular deductions would have increased had he elected to increase his deductions as provided in ~~subdivision~~ **subsection** (1) of section 17-185 of this article, if he did not do so.

*Annuity Reserve* shall mean the present value of all payments to be made on account of any annuity or benefit in lieu of any annuity granted under the provisions of this ordinance, computed upon the basis of such mortality tables as shall be adopted by the Retirement Board with regular interest.

*Beneficiary* shall mean any person in receipt of a pension, an annuity, a retirement allowance, or other benefit as provided by this Article.

*Board of investment commissioners* shall mean the board of investment commissioners as set forth and defined in Section 815 of the Providence Home Rule Charter of 1980.

*Class A employees* shall mean general employees, including laborers, mechanics, and clerical, administrative, professional and technical workers.

*Class B employees* shall mean members of the fire department and the police department of the City of Providence.

*Employee* shall mean any regular and permanent employee or officer of the City of Providence. The ~~Retirement Board~~ **director of personnel** shall determine who are employees within the meaning of this article.

*Final Compensation* shall mean the average of the highest three (3) years of compensation within the total service when the average compensation was the highest, excluding ~~longevity payments~~ and payments made for overtime or payments made for temporary or extra duties beyond the normal or regular work day.

*Members* shall mean any person included in the membership of the retirement system as provided in Section 17-187 of this article.

*Pension* shall mean annual payments for life derived from appropriations provided by the City of Providence under the provisions of this article.

*Pension Reserve* shall mean the present value of all payments to be made on account of any pension or benefit in lieu of any pension computed upon the basis of such mortality tables as shall be adopted by the Retirement Board with regular interest.

*Regular Interest* shall mean at four (4) percent per annum, compounded annually, or interest at such lower rate or rates as may be set by the Retirement Board but not less than three (3) percent per annum.

*Retirement Board* shall mean the employee retirement board ~~provided~~ as set forth and

defined in sSection 17-183 908 of the Providence Home Rule Charter of 1980. of this article to administer the retirement system.

*Retirement System* shall mean the Employees' Retirement System of the City of Providence as defined in Section 17-182 of this article.

*Service* shall mean service as an employee of the City of Providence as described in subdivision subsection (2) of this section 17-188 of this article.

*Total Service* shall mean service creditable pursuant to Section 17-188 of this article.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 1, 2-8-91; Ord. 1993, ch. 93-12, § 1, 4-9-93; Ord. 1995, ch. 95-17, § 2, 7-31-95)

*Section 17-182. Name and Date of Establishment.*

A retirement system is hereby established and placed under the management of the Retirement Board for the purpose of providing retirement allowances for employees of the City of Providence under the provisions of this article. The retirement system so created shall begin operation as of the fifth day of January, 1925. It shall have the powers and privileges of a corporation, and shall be known as the "Employees' Retirement System of the City of Providence," and by such name all of its business shall be transacted, all of its funds invested and all of its cash and securities and other property held.

The retirement system created by Public Laws 1923, Chapter 489 approved May 14, 1923, implemented by Providence Home Rule Charter of 1980, adopted November

4, 1980, and Chapter 1991-5 of the Ordinances of the City of Providence, approved February 8, 1991, was established for the purpose of providing retirement allowances for employees of the City of Providence under the management of the Retirement Board. It shall be known as the "Employee Retirement System of the City of Providence" and by such name shall its functions be carried out as set forth in this article.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 2, 2-8-91)

*Section 17-183. Retirement Board system.*

(1) The general administration and the responsibility for the proper operation of the retirement system and for making effective the provisions of this article are hereby vested in a Retirement Board. The Retirement Board shall from time to time establish rules and regulations for the administration and transaction of the business of the retirement system, and shall perform such other functions as are required for the execution of this article.

(2) The membership of the retirement board shall consist of the mayor, the chairman of the committee on finance of the city council, and the city controller, ex officio; two (2) members who shall not be officers or employees of the city, who shall be elected by the city council; two (2) Class A employees who shall be elected by the members of the system who are Class A employees; one (1) Class B employee who shall be elected by the members of the system who are Class B employees of the Providence fire department; one (1) Class B employee who shall be elected by the members of the system who are Class B employees of the Providence police department; one (1) retired Class A employee who shall be elected by the retired



members of the system who were Class A employees; and one (1) retired Class B employee who shall be elected by the members of the Providence Retirement Police and Fire Association who is a member in good standing of that organization. The election by the members shall be in accordance with such rules as the board shall adopt to govern such elections.

The regular terms of elected members shall be (4) four years. Should any vacancy occur among the elected members of the board, it shall be filled for the unexpired term in the manner provided for the original election.

(2) The membership of the retirement board shall consist of the mayor, the chairperson of the city council committee on budgetary matters and the city controller, ex officio; two (2) members who shall not be officers or employees of the city who shall be elected by the city council and representatives of the present and retired employees of the city. The employee representatives shall be chosen from the two (2) classes of employees designated for retirement purposes, to wit, "Class A employees," who are all employees covered by the retirement system not otherwise designated, and "Class B employees," who are policemen and firemen, otherwise known as the sworn personnel of the department of public safety. Two (2) Class A employees shall be elected by the members of the system who are Class A employees; one Class B employee shall be elected by the members of the system who are Class B employees of the city fire department; one Class B employee shall be elected by the members of the system who are Class B employees of the city police department;

one retired Class A employee shall be elected by the retired members of the system who were Class A employees; and one retired Class B employee shall be elected by retired members of the system who were Class B employees. The election by the members shall be in accordance with such rules as the board shall adopt to govern such elections. The regular terms of elected members shall be four (4) years. Vacancies among the elected members of the board shall be filled for the unexpired term in the manner provided for the original election. The members of the Retirement Board shall serve without compensation.

(3) The Retirement Board shall report annually in detail to the city council on or before the first Monday in January, showing the fiscal transactions of the system for the fiscal period of the City preceeding, the amount of the accumulated cash and securities of the system and a copy of the last balance sheet showing the financial condition of the system by means of an actuarial valuation of the assets and liabilities.

(4) The city solicitor shall be the legal advisor and attorney for the retirement board. The city treasurer shall be the custodian of the funds and the treasurer thereof. The city clerk shall be the clerk of the board.

(5) The city controller, ~~under the supervision of the Retirement Board,~~ shall be charged with the establishment and maintenance of such accounts and statistical records as the Retirement Board may require and he shall employ such clerical assistance as shall be necessary to carry out properly the provisions of this article; the city council from time to time shall provide by appropriations sufficient sums to pay the cost of such services.

The Retirement Board City Council shall secure the services of an actuary who shall be the actuarial advisor for the purpose of making of the Board and who shall make the actuarial computations and valuations for the retirement system as required by this ordinance article. The Retirement Board director of personnel shall secure the services of such physicians as shall be necessary to make the medical examinations as required by this article. The city council from time to time shall provide by appropriation sufficient sums to pay the cost of such services. and the necessary expenses of the Board.

(6) The Retirement Board shall collect and keep in convenient form such data as shall be necessary for the preparation of the mortality and service tables and for the compilation of such other information as shall be required for the actuarial valuation of the assets and liabilities of the retirement system.

(7) In the five-year period beginning the first day of July, 1974 and in every five-year period thereafter, the actuary shall make an acturial investigation into the mortality, service and compensation experience of the members and beneficiaries of the retirement system and taking into account the result of such investigation, the Retirement Board shall adopt for the retirement system such mortality, service and other tables as shall be deemed necessary.

(8) On the basis of such tables as the Retirement Board shall adopt, the actuary shall make an annual valuation of the assets and liabilities of the funds of the system created by this article. Taking into account the results of such valuation, the Retirement Board shall certify the rates of contribution payable by the City under the provisions of this article.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 3, 2-8-91; Ord. 1992, ch. 92-48, § 1, 12-11-92)

*Section 17-184. Investment of Funds.*

(1) All moneys not immediately required for the payment of retirement allowances or other benefits shall be invested by the board of investment commissioners for the benefit of the retirement system. The board of investment commissioners is authorized and empowered to execute the disposition and investment of the funds which are within its control in any securities and investments as would be acquired by prudent persons of discretion and intelligence in these matters, who are seeking a reasonable income and the preservation of their capital. The prudent person standard shall be that standard of care employed by soley in the interest of the members and beneficiaries of the retirement system and:

(a) For the exclusive purpose of:

1. Providing benefits to members and their beneficiaries; and
2. Defraying reasonable expenses of administering the funds of the retirement system;

(b) With the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims;

(c) By diversifying the investments of the fund so as to minimize the risk of large losses, unless under the circumstances it is clearly prudent not to do so. The board of investment commissioners shall adopt a statement of investment objectives and policies consistent

with the prudent person standard as hereinabove defined.

(2) The city controller is hereby authorized and ~~director~~ directed to draw his orders upon the city treasurer for the purchase of investments, upon receipt by him of properly authenticated vouchers signed by the chairperson of the board of investment commissioners or by the vice-chairperson in the event of the chairperson's absence or illness. The proceeds from the sale of investments shall be paid to the city treasurer for the benefit of the retirement funds of the retirement system.

(3) The board of investment commissioners shall annually allow regular interest on the average amount for the preceding year to the credit of the various funds of the retirement system from the interest and dividends earned from investments. Any excess earnings over the amount so credited shall be used in reducing the amount of contributions required by the City. Any deficiency shall be paid by the City.

(4) Except as herein provided, no member of the board of investment commissioners and no employee of said board shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in the gains or profits of any investment made by said board, nor as such, directly or indirectly, receive any pay or emolument for his services. And no member of the board of investment commissioners or employee of the said board shall, directly or indirectly, for himself or as an agent, in any manner use the same, except to make such current and necessary payments as are authorized by the board of investment commissioners; nor shall any member or employee of the board of investment commissioners become an endorser or surety or become in any manner an ~~obligor~~ obligor for moneys loaned or borrowed from the Retirement Board funds of the retirement system.

(5) The board of investment commissioners shall report annually in detail to the city council on or before the first Monday in October of each year showing the investment transactions made by the board of investment commissioners on behalf of the employees retirement system.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 4, 2-8-91; Ord. 1993, ch. 93-12, § 2, 4-9-93; Ord. 1996, ch. 96-22, § 1, 4-21-96)

*Section 17-185. Method of Financing.*

The funds hereby created are the annuity savings fund, the annuity reserve fund, the pension accumulation fund and the pension reserve fund.

(1) *Annuity savings fund.* The annuity savings fund shall be a fund in which shall be accumulated contributions from the compensation of members to provide for their annuities and their withdrawal allowances. Upon the basis of such tables as the Retirement Board shall adopt and regular interest, the actuary of the retirement system shall determine for each Class A member of the proportion of the compensation which, when deducted from each payment of his prospective earnable annual compensation prior to his eligibility for service retirement and accumulated at regular interest until his attainment of the minimum age of service retirement for his group, shall be computed to provide at that time an annuity equal to the pension provided on account of his service as a member. Such proportion of compensation shall be computed to remain constant. In the event that the provisions of this article for the determination of the amount of the pension of a Class A employee on account of his service as a member shall at any time be amended, the Retirement Board shall adopt,

as of the effective date of such amendment, rates of contribution for Class A employees computed on the basis of such amendment and such contribution rates shall apply to all members who become Class A employees after said effective date at the age attained upon entrance into such Class. No increase in percentage contribution rates shall be required of members who are so classified on said effective date, but any such member may elect prior to said date to contribute at the rate as so amended applicable to his age attained on said date and thereafter deductions shall be made from his compensation at such amended rate. The Retirement Board shall adopt as of April, 1961 for Employees in Class B a percentage contribution rate of five (5%) per centum, and therefore deductions shall be made from the compensation of all members so classified at this rate. The Retirement Board shall adopt as of October 1, 1968 for employees in Class B, a percentage contribution rate of eight (8%) per centum, and thereafter deductions shall be made from the compensation of all members so classified at this rate. The retirement board shall adopt as of July 1, 1989, for employees in class B who are members of the Police Department and as of July 1, 1990, for employees of Class B who are members of the Fire Department, a percentage contribution rate of nine and one-half (9½) per centum, and thereafter deductions shall be made from the compensation of all members so classified at this rate, anything to the contrary in this article notwithstanding. The proportion so computed for a member one year younger than the minimum age for service retirement from his group shall be applied to any member who has attained a greater age before entrance into the retirement system. The Retirement Board shall adopt as of July 1, 1974, for employees in Class A, a percentage contribution rate of eight (8%) per centum, and thereafter deductions shall be

made from the compensation of all members so classified at this rate, anything to the contrary in this article notwithstanding. The proportion so computed for a member one year younger than the minimum retirement age for service retirement from his group shall be applied to any member who has attained a greater age before entrance into the retirement system.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the foregoing paragraph of this subsection (1) of this Section, the contribution rates applicable on September 30, 1968 shall continue in force for all Class A employees who were then members of the retirement system. They shall also apply to members enrolling on or after October 1, 1968, except that the Retirement Board may from time to time adopt for employees becoming members thereafter, new proportions of compensation to be determined as provided in the preceeding paragraph.

The Retirement Board shall certify to the The City Controller shall certify the proportion of earnable compensation of each member so computed, and he shall deduct such proportion from the compensation of each member on each and every payroll of each department for each and every payroll period; but the City Controller shall not make any deductions for annuity purposes from the annual compensation of a member who elects not to contribute if he has attained the minimum retirement age in the case of a Class A employee or if he has completed twenty-five (25) years of creditable service. in the case of a Class B employee. In determining the amount earnable by a member in a payroll period, the Retirement Board may consider the rate of annual compensation payable to such member on the first day of the payroll period as continuing throughout such payroll period and it may omit deductions from compensation for any period less than a full

payroll period if an employee was not a member on the first day of the payroll period; and to facilitate the making of deductions it may modify the deduction required by any member by such an amount as shall not exceed one-tenth of one percentum of the annual compensation upon the basis of which said deduction is to be made. The deductions provided for herein shall be made notwithstanding that the minimum compensation provided for by law for any member shall be reduced thereby. Every member shall be deemed to consent and agree to the deductions made and provided for herein and shall receipt for his full salary or compensation; and payment of salary or compensation less said deduction shall be a full and complete discharge and acquittance of all claims and demands whatsoever for the services rendered by such person during the period covered by such payment except as to the benefits provided under this article. Said amounts shall be deducted and when deducted shall be paid into said annuity savings fund, and shall be credited, together with regular interest, to an individual account of the member from whose compensation said deduction was made.

In addition to the contributions deducted from compensation hereinbefore provided, any member may re-deposit in the annuity savings fund by a single payment or by an increased rate of contribution an amount equal to the total amount which he withdrew previously therefrom as provided in this article, or any member may deposit therein by a single payment or by an increased rate of contribution an amount to be used to provide an additional annuity. Such additional amounts so deposited shall become a part of his accumulated contributions except in the case of retirement, when they shall be treated as excess contributions returnable to the member in the same manner and form as his

normal accumulated contributions. The accumulated contributions of a member, withdrawn by him or paid to his estate or to his designated beneficiary in the event of his death as provided in this article, shall be paid from the annuity savings fund. Upon retirement of a member, his accumulated contributions shall be transferred from the annuity savings fund to the annuity reserve fund. Subject to such rules and regulations as the Retirement Board may provide, any member who has at least three (3) years of total service may borrow from his account in the annuity savings fund for the following purposes:

- (a) Medical expenses.
- (b) Dental expenses.
- (c) Hospital expenses.
- (d) Funeral expenses.
- (e) Down payment on the purchase of real estate to be used in whole or in part as the member's home.
- (f) Such other purposes as the Retirement Board may approve.

The aggregate amount of loans outstanding to any member shall never exceed the lesser of the following amounts:

- (1) Fifty (50%) per centum of the amount of the members accumulated contributions.
- (2) An amount, together with interest thereon, which can be repaid within ten (10) years prior to the member's attainment of the age of seventy (70) years by additional deductions from his compensation.

The rate of interest payable on the unpaid balance of such loans shall be fixed at the date of commencement of the loan at the rate established for this purpose from time to time by the Retirement Board. The principle amount, together with interest thereon, shall be repaid to the retirement system in equal installments in such amounts as the board shall approve, and shall be deducted from the compensation of the member at the same time and in the same manner as the member's contributions to the retirement system are deducted. Such installments shall be at least equal to five (5%) per centum of the member's compensation.

All payments of principal and regular interest made by a borrowing member shall be credited to his account in the annuity savings fund. The excess of the interest paid by him over the regular interest creditable to the account of the member shall be credited to the pension accumulation fund. The amount of any benefit which becomes payable under the provisions of this chapter shall be determined on the basis of the member's accumulated contributions less the outstanding balance of such loan, and the pension shall be determined as if such loan had not been made. Should a beneficiary be restored to active service, his annuity reserve shall be transferred from the accumulation fund to his credit in the annuity savings fund.

(2) *Annuity reserve fund.* The annuity reserve fund shall be the fund from which shall be paid all annuities and all benefits in lieu of annuities, payable as provided in this article. Should a beneficiary retired on account of disability be restored to active service, his annuity shall cease and his annuity reserve shall be transferred to his credit in the annuity savings fund.

(3) *Pension accumulation fund.* The pension accumulation fund shall be the fund in which shall be accumulated all reserves for the payment of all pensions and other benefits payable from contributions made by the City of Providence and from which such pensions and other benefits shall be paid to or on account of beneficiaries credited with prior service. Contributions to and payments from the pension accumulation fund shall be made as follows:

(a) On account of each member there shall be paid annually into the pension accumulation fund by the City of Providence for the preceding fiscal period, a certain percentage of the earnable compensation of each member to be known as the "normal contribution," and an additional percentage of his earnable compensation to be known as the "deficiency contribution." The rates per centum of such contributions shall be fixed on the basis of the liabilities of the retirement system as shown by actuarial valuations. Until the first valuation, the normal contribution shall be two and sixty-seven one hundredths ( $2\frac{67}{100}$ ) per centum and the deficiency contribution shall be two and forty-five one hundredths ( $2\frac{45}{100}$ ) per centum of the salaries of all members.

(b) On the basis of regular interest and of such mortality and other tables as shall be adopted by the Retirement Board, the actuary engaged by the Board city council to make each valuation required by this article during the period over which the deficiency contribution is payable, immediately after making such valuation, shall determine the uniform and constant percentage of the earnable compensation of the average new entrant, which, if contributed on the basis of his compensation

throughout his entire period of active service would be sufficient to provide at the time of his retirement the total amount of his pension reserve. The rate per centum so determined shall be known as the "normal contribution" rate. After the deficiency contribution has ceased to be payable, the normal contribution shall be the rate per centum of the earnable salary of all members obtained by deducting from the total liabilities of the pension accumulation fund the amount of the funds in hand to the credit of that fund and dividing the remainder by one per centum of the present value of the prospective future salaries of all members as computed on the basis of the mortality and service tables adopted by the Retirement Board and regular interest. The normal rate of contribution shall be determined by the actuary after each mortality and service investigation and shall continue in force until a new investigation and certification.

(c) Immediately succeeding the first valuation, the actuary engaged by the ~~Retirement Board~~ city council shall compute the rate per centum of the total compensation of all members during the preceding fiscal year which is equivalent to four per centum of the amount of the total pension liability on account of all members and beneficiaries not dischargable by the aforesaid normal contribution made on account of such members during the remainder of their active service. The rate per centum originally so determined shall be known as the "deficiency contribution rate." On the basis of the first actuarial valuation following the 1st day of April, 1965, the deficiency contribution rate shall be revised to provide for the liquidation of the deficiency then existing.

(d) The total amount payable in each year to the pension accumulation fund shall not be less than the sum of the rates per centum known

as the normal contribution rate and the deficiency contribution rate of the total compensation earnable by all members during the preceding fiscal period; provided, however, the sum of such rates per centum need not exceed the rate per centum of the earnable salary of all members obtained by deducting from seventy (70) per centum of the total liabilities of all funds except the annuity savings fund the amount of the funds in hand to the credit of such funds and dividing the remainder by one (1%) per centum of the present value of the prospective future salaries of all members as computed on the basis of the mortality and service tables adopted by the Retirement Board and regular interest. The aggregate payment by the City into the pension accumulation fund shall be sufficient, when combined with the amount in the fund, to provide the pension payable out of the fund during the year then current.

(e) The deficiency contribution shall be discontinued as soon as the accumulated reserve in the pension accumulation fund shall equal the present value, ~~is as~~ actuarially computed and approved by the ~~Retirement Board~~ city council, of the total liability of such fund less the ~~preset~~ present value, computed on the basis of the normal contribution rate then in force, of the normal contributions to be received on account of persons who are at that time members.

(f) All pensions with the exception of those payable on account of members who received no prior service allowance shall be paid from the pension accumulation fund.

(g) Upon the retirement of a member not entitled to prior service allowance, an amount equal to his pension reserve shall be transferred from the pension accumulation fund to the pension reserve fund.

(4) *Pension reserve fund.* The pension reserve fund shall be the fund from which shall be paid the pensions to members not entitled to a prior service allowance. Should any disability pension payable from said fund be cancelled, the pension reserve thereon shall thereupon be transferred from the pension reserve fund to the pension accumulation fund. Should the pension of a disability beneficiary be reduced as a result of an increase in his earning capacity, the amount of the annual reduction in his pension shall be paid annually into the pension accumulation fund during the period of such reduction.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 5, 2-8-91; Ord. 1993, ch. 93-21, § 1, 7-7-93; Ord. 1995, ch. 95-17, § 8, 7-31-95)

*Section 17-186. Guarantee by City.*

Regular interest charges payable, the creation and maintenance of reserves in the pension accumulation fund and the maintenance of annuity reserves and pension reserves as provided for in this article are hereby guaranteed by the City of Providence. All income, interest and dividends derived from the deposits and investments authorized by this article shall be used as provided in this article for the payment of regular interest charges and any surplus shall be credited against the contributions required of the City and any deficit in the regular interest requirements shall be added to the City's contribution and paid by the City. Upon the basis of each actuarial valuation and appraisal provided for in this article, the ~~Retirement Board~~ **finance director** shall prepare and submit to the joint standing committee on finance of the city council on or before the first day of May in each year an itemized statement of the amounts necessary to be appropriated by the City to the various funds

during the ensuing fiscal period. The city council shall make an appropriation which **the city council shall deem to be** sufficient to provide for the contributions required of the City of Providence under this article and the amount so appropriated shall be included in the annual appropriation ordinance and shall be paid by the city treasury to the various funds of the system created by this article.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 6, 2-8-91)

*Section 17-187. Membership of Retirement System.*

(1) All employees as defined in this article shall, upon their option in the case of elected officials and officials appointed for a fixed term, or under contract of their employment in the case of other such employees, become members of the retirement system, and shall receive no pension or retirement allowance from any other pension or retirement system supported wholly or in part by the City of Providence, nor shall they be required to make contributions under any other pension or retirement system of said city, anything to the contrary notwithstanding.

(2) It shall be the duty of the ~~head of each department~~ **director of personnel** to submit to the Retirement Board a statement showing the name, title, compensation, duties, date of birth and length of service of each member, and such other information as the Retirement Board may require. The Retirement Board shall then classify each member as either a Class A employee or a Class B employee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for the purpose of the adoption of service and mortality tables pursuant to ~~subdivision~~ **subsection** (7) of Section 17-183 of this article, the Retirement Board may classify the members in Class A or in Class B in any other groups which as may



be recommended by the actuary on the basis of the service and mortality experience and approved by the Retirement Board.

The Board shall certify to the member the class in which he is placed and the date of his admission to membership therein. When the duties of a member so require, the Retirement Board may reclassify him in another class and shall thereupon certify to him the class to which he has been transferred, provided that no member having 15 or more years of service creditable to him as a member of one (1) class may be so reclassified.

Should the service of any member in any period of ten (10) consecutive years after last becoming a member amount to less than five (5) years, or should he withdraw his accumulated contributions, or should he become a beneficiary or die, he shall thereupon cease to be a member.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 7, 2-8-91)

*Section 17-188, Service Creditable — Generally.*

(1) The Retirement Board shall fix and determine by appropriate rules and regulations how much service in any year is equivalent to a year of service, but in computing such service or in computing the compensation, it shall credit no period of more than a month's duration in which a member was absent without pay nor shall more than one (1) year of service be credited on account of all service in one calendar year.

(2) At retirement the total service credited a member shall consist of the service rendered by him as an employee since he last became a member and any additional service hereinafter

provided. In no event shall the total service credited to a Class B member exceed thirty-two (32) years and six (6) months; provided, however, that service rendered by such member after minimum retirement age shall not be considered as credited service unless the member has continued to make his required contributions after the attainment of such age.

(3) Any member in service on January 1, 1954 who has rendered service as a member prior to his last becoming a member and terminated such previous service not less than six months prior to his last restoration to service may elect, by written notice filed with the Retirement Board prior to June 30, 1955, to repay into the annuity savings fund, in such manner as shall be prescribed by said Board, an amount equal to the amount of his regular deductions withdrawn by him on account of his last termination of membership together with regular interest thereon from his last termination of membership, to the date of repayment. Upon repayment, anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, such amount shall become a part of his accumulated contributions and the period of service during which such deductions were originally made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension on account of membership service which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(4) Effective May 8, 1963, any employee who was a member on February 15, 1963 and who had a period of continuous service of at least one year's duration prior to his date of membership may, by written notice filed with

the Retirement Board prior to January 1, 1964, elect to pay into the annuity savings fund, in such manner as shall be prescribed by said Board, an amount equal to all or a part of the deductions which would have been made had he been a member during such period of continuous service and contributed during such period of service as an employee together with interest thereon from the beginning of said period to the date of employment. Service prior to the fifth day of January, 1925, shall not be included in such period of service. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of his accumulated contributions and the period of service on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(5) Effective May 8, 1963 any person classified as a Class B employee on February 15, 1963 who had a period of service in a training school for such employees in the City of Providence prior to his date of membership may, by written notice filed with the Retirement Board prior to January 1, 1964, elect to pay into the annuity savings fund, in such manner as shall be prescribed by said Board, an amount equal to all or a part of the deductions which would have been made had he been a member during such period of service and contributed during such period of service together with interest thereon from the beginning of said period to the date of payment. Service prior to the fifth day of January, 1925, shall not be included in such period of service. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwith-

standing, such amount shall become part of his accumulated contributions and the period of service on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(6) Effective October 1, 1964, any employee or elected official who was a member on February 15, 1965 and who had a period of continuous service of at least one year's duration prior to his date of membership may, by written notice filed to the Retirement Board prior to January 1, 1966, elect to pay into the annuity savings fund, in such manner as shall be prescribed by said Board, an amount equal to all or a part of the deductions which would have been made had he been a member during such period of continuous service and contributed during such period of service as an employee together with interest thereon from the beginning of said period to the date of payment. Service prior to the fifth day of January, 1925, shall not be included in such period of service. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of his accumulated contributions and the period of service on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(7) Effective October 1, 1968 any employee or elected officer who was a member on April 1, 1968 who had a period of continuous service of at least six months duration prior to his date of membership, may, by written notice filed with the Retirement Board prior to October 1, 1969, elect to pay into the annuity savings fund, in such manner as shall be prescribed by said Board, an amount equal to all or a part of the deductions which would have been made had he been a member during such period of service and contributed during such period of service as an employee, together with interest thereon from the beginning of said period to the date of payment. Service prior to the fifth day of January, 1925, shall not be included in such period of service. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of his accumulated contributions and the period of service on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(8) Effective October 1, 1968 any person classified as a Class B employee on April 1, 1968 who had a period of service in excess of twenty years as of April 1, 1968 may, by written notice filed with the Retirement Board prior to October 1, 1969, elect to pay into the annuity savings fund, in such manner as shall be prescribed by said Board, an amount equal to three (3%) per centum of his compensation from the 21st through the 25th year of said member's service, and an amount equal to eight (8%) per centum of his compensation from the 26th year of service up to and including the 32nd year and 6th month

of his service, with interest thereon from the beginning of said period to the date of payment. Service prior to the fifth day of January, 1925, shall not be included in such period of service. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of his accumulated contributions and the period of service on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him. If said Class B employee fails to make the additional contributions as required by the provisions of this subdivision, any contributions made subsequent to the completion of 20 years of service shall be used to provide an excess annuity on retirement.

(9) Effective July 1, 1972 any employee or elected officer who was a member on January 1, 1972 who had a period of continuous service of at least six months duration prior to his date of membership, may, by written notice filed with the Retirement Board prior to July 1, 1973, elect to pay into the annuity savings fund, in such manner as shall be prescribed by said Board, an amount equal to all or a part of the deductions which would have been made had he been a member during such period of continuous service and contributed during such period of continuous service as an employee, together with interest thereon from the beginning of said period to the date of payment. Service prior to the fifth day of January, 1925, shall not be included in such period of service. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of his accumulated contributions and the period of

service on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(10) — (12) Reserved.

(13) Any retired member of the retirement system who was in the armed services of the United States or in the merchant marine service of the United States as defined in Chapter 1721 of the Public Laws, 1946, during any period of one year or more commencing September 16, 1940, may pay into the retirement system a contribution equal to ten (10%) per centum of his compensation earnable in his first year of creditable service multiplied by the number of years and fraction thereof in such armed service up to a maximum of four years; provided further, that the compensation shall be an additional two (2%) per centum per year for each year purchased, added to whatever pension benefit that is currently payable for his previous employment in the City, including those retired members who received disability retirement benefits. Upon such payment, notwithstanding any general or public law or special enactment to the contrary, that in the event a member is retired and receiving ordinary or disability benefits, his retirement benefit shall be increased an additional two (2%) per centum per annum for each year purchased for the period of service in the armed forces or merchant marines, and further, shall be increased even in those cases that would increase the retirement benefit beyond sixty-six and two-thirds (66  $\frac{2}{3}$  %) per centum. The credit of such service shall be both for the purpose of recomputing the

amount of pension which is payable under this article and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 8, 2-8-91; Ord. 1993, ch. 93-28, § 3, 9-24-93)

*Section 17-188.1. Same — Purchase of service credit.*

(1) The city controller, pursuant to the authority of section 17-183 (5), shall be responsible for the determination, establishment and fixing of service creditable for previous service or military service and the cost of the purchase thereof as set forth in subsections (2), (3), (4) and (5) herein, of this section for active members with a period of continuous service of at least one (1) year's duration. The city controller shall make a report monthly to report monthly to the retirement board and the city council of all purchases of service credit made by any members.

(2) Any member who was on active duty in the armed services of the United States or in the merchant marine service of the United States during and period of one (1) year or more, may, by written notice filed with the city controller, pay into the retirement system within seven (7) years of his first becoming a member, a contribution equal to ten (10) percentum of his compensation earnable in his first year of creditable service multiplied by the number of years and fraction thereof in such armed service up to a maximum of four (4) years. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of such member's accumulated contributions and the period of service in the armed forces or merchant marines on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such

service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder, and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(3) Any member who has rendered service as a member prior to his last becoming a member and terminated such previous service may, by written notice filed with the city controller, elect to repay into the annuity savings fund an amount equal to the amount of such member's accumulated contributions which were withdrawn by such member on account of such member's last termination of membership, together with eight (8) percentum interest compounded annually thereon from his last termination of membership, to the date of repayment. Upon such repayment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of such member's accumulated contributions and the period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(4) Any employee or elected officer who is an active Class A member who returns to employment following a period of leave to which he is entitled under Federal or State Law or a period of disability for which workers' compensation or similar payments are made, may, by written notice filed with the city controller, elect to pay into the annuity savings fund an amount equal to eight (8) percentum of the base compensation which the employee or elected officer would have paid had such employee or elected officer not taken such period of leave or disability together

with eight (8) percentum interest compounded annually thereon from the date of the commencement of his period of leave or disability, to the date of repayment. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of such member's accumulated contributions and the period of service on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(5) Any employee or elected officer who is an active Class B member who returns to employment following a period of leave to which he is entitled under Federal or State Law or a period of disability for which workers' compensation or similar payments are made, may, by written notice filed with the city controller, elect to pay into the annuity savings fund an amount equal to eight (8) percentum of the base compensation which the employee or elected officer would have paid had such employee or elected officer not taken such period of leave or disability together with eight (8) percentum interest compounded annually thereon from the date of the commencement of his period of leave or disability, to the date of repayment. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of such member's accumulated contributions and the period of service on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may become payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the

benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(6) Any other employee or elected officer who is an active member and who had a period of continuous full time service of at least six (6) months' duration prior to his date of membership as a temporary city employee, or a CETA-financed city employee, may by, written notice filed with the city controller, elect to pay into the annuity savings fund and the pension accumulation fund an amount equal to the full actuarial value of the benefits payable under this article as of the date of payment, as computed by the actuarial advisor of the board, assuming such member shall retire on his normal retirement date based upon the assumptions used in the plan's actuarial valuation. Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount paid into the annuity savings account shall become part of such member's accumulated contributions and the period of such service on account of which such payment was made shall be added to his period of service since last becoming a member. The crediting of such service shall be both for the purpose of computing the amount of pension which may be payable under this article and for the purpose of determining such member's eligibility for the benefits payable hereunder and the rights of any beneficiary claiming through him.

(7) The city controller shall not permit the purchase of service credits in the retirement system for any period of employment as a seasonal or part-time employee or for service as a member on any part-time board or commission.

(Ord. 1993, ch. 93-28, § 2, 9-24-93)

*Section 17-189. Benefits Payable.*

(1) *Service Retirement:* Retirement of a member on a service retirement allowance shall be made by the Retirement Board as follows:

(a) ~~Each Class A member who has attained the age of seventy shall be retired forthwith, or on the first day of the calendar month next succeeding that in which the said member shall have attained the age of seventy years. Provided further that the foregoing retirement provisions shall not apply to officials elected by the people.~~

(e) (a) Any member may retire upon his written application to the Retirement Board setting forth at what time, not less than thirty (30) nor more than ninety (90) days subsequent to the execution and filing thereof, he desires to be retired, provided that the said member at the time so specified for his retirement shall have attained the minimum age requirement age for his class and notwithstanding that, during such period of notification, he may have separated from service. The minimum ages for service retirement for employees who became members on or before June 30, 1995 shall be as follows:

Class A employees: Fifty-five (55) or the age at which twenty-five (25) years of service is completed if prior thereto.

Class B employees: Fifty-five (55) or the age at which twenty (20) years of service is completed if prior thereto.

The minimum age for service retirement for employees who become members on or after July 1, 1995 shall be as follows:

Class A employees: Fifty-five (55) or the age at which thirty (30) years of service is completed if prior thereto.

Class B employees: Fifty-five (55) or at the age at which twenty (20) years of service is completed if prior thereto.

(b) Each class B member who has attained the age of sixty (60) and each class B member who attains the age of sixty (60), shall be retired forthwith, or on the first day of the calendar month next succeeding that in which the member shall have attained the age of sixty (60) years.

(d) Any provision hereto to the contrary notwithstanding, any member who attains, or has attained, the mandatory retirement age, who requires additional credits to be eligible for benefits under the pension plan of the Laborers International Union of North America AFL-CIO, may continue his employment until he attains such needed additional credits, but in no case to extend beyond an additional one year extension.

(2) *Allowance on Service Retirement:* Upon retirement for service a member shall receive a retirement allowance which shall consist of:

(a) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated contributions at the time of his retirement; and

(b) If the member is a Class A employee who first becomes a member prior to July 1, 1996, a pension which together with his normal annuity, exclusive of any excess annuity, shall be equal to one-fortieth of his final compensation multiplied by the first twenty (20) years of his total service credited, and equal to one-fiftieth of his final compensation multiplied by the number of years of his total service credited in excess of twenty (20) years; and, in addition, an excess annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated excess contribu-

tions at the time of his retirement. If there is a Class A employee who first becomes a member on or after July 1, 1996, a pension which together with his normal annuity, exclusive of any excess annuity, shall be equal to one-fiftieth of his final compensation multiplied by the number of years of his total service credited; and, in addition, an excess annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated excess contributions at the time of his retirement, provided, however, that no Class A employee shall receive a service retirement allowance, exclusive of any excess annuity, in excess of one hundred (100) percentum of his final compensation.

(c) If the member is a Class B employee, a pension which together with his normal annuity, exclusive of any excess annuity, shall be equal to one-fortieth of his final compensation multiplied by the first twenty (20) years of his total service credited, and equal to one-fiftieth of his final compensation multiplied by the number of years of his total service credited in excess of twenty years; and, in addition, an excess annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated excess contributions at the time of his retirement, provided, however, that no Class B employee shall receive a service retirement allowance, exclusive of any excess annuity, in excess of seventy-five (75) percentum of his final compensation.

(3) *Ordinary Disability Retirement:* Medical examination of a member for ordinary disability shall be made upon application of the head of the department in which said member is employed, or upon the application of said member or of a person acting in his behalf, stating that said member is physically or mentally incapacitated for the performance of duty and that he ought to be retired, provided that the said member has had ten (10) or more

years of total service. A medical examination of the member shall be made by three physicians engaged by the Retirement Board director of personnel for this purpose, and should such medical examination show that said member is physically or mentally incapacitated for the performance of duty and ought to be retired, the physicians shall so report and certify to the Retirement Board and the Retirement Board shall retire the said member for ordinary disability forthwith.

(4) *Allowance Upon Ordinary Disability Retirement:* Upon retirement for ordinary disability a member shall receive a retirement allowance which shall consist of:

(a) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated contributions at the time of his retirement; and

(b) If the member is a Class A employee, a pension which together with his normal annuity, exclusive of any excess annuity, shall be equal to nine-tenths of one-fiftieth of his final compensation multiplied by the number of years of the total service which would have been credited at minimum retirement age had he remained in service to such age; and in addition, an excess annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated excess contributions at the time of his retirement; provided, however that no Class A employee shall receive an ordinary disability retirement allowance, exclusive of any excess annuity, in excess of forty-five (45) per centum of his final compensation. ~~In no event shall his pension be less than it would have been had the provisions of this paragraph (b) as in effect on September 30, 1964 continued without change to his date of retirement.~~

(c) If the member is a Class B employee, a pension which together with his normal annuity, exclusive of any excess annuity, shall be equal to nine-tenths of one-fortieth of his final compensation multiplied by the number of years of total service which would have been credited at minimum retirement age had he remained in service at such age; and, in addition, an excess annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated excess contributions at the time of his retirement, provided, however, that no Class B employee shall receive an ordinary disability retirement allowance, exclusive of any excess annuity, in excess of forty-five (45) per centum of his final compensation. ~~In no event shall his pension be less than it would have been had the provisions of this paragraph (c) as in effect on September 30, 1964 continued without change to his date of retirement.~~

(5) *Accidental Disability Retirement:* Medical examination of a member for accidental disability and investigation of all statements and certifications by him or in his behalf in connection therewith shall be made upon the application of the head of the department in which said member is employed, or upon the application of the member, or of a person acting in his behalf, stating that such member is physically or mentally incapacitated for the performance of the duties the member was performing at the time of the accident, as a natural and proximate result of an accident while in the performance of duty, and certifying the definite time, place and conditions of such duty performed by said member resulting in such alleged disability and that such alleged disability is not the result of willful negligence or misconduct on the part of said member and is not the result of age or length of service and that said member should, therefore, be retired.



If a medical examination conducted by three (3) physicians engaged by the Retirement Board director of personnel and such investigation as the Retirement Board director of personnel may desire to make shall show that said member is physically or mentally incapacitated for the performance of service as a natural and proximate result of an accident, while in the performance of duty, and that such disability is not the result of willful negligence or misconduct on the part of said member and is not the result of age or length of service, and that such member should be retired, and in the event a majority of the physicians who conducted the examination shall so certify to the Retirement Board stating the time, place and condition of such service performed by said member resulting in such disability, the Retirement Board shall retire the said member for accidental disability. The application to accomplish such retirement must be filed within eighteen months of the date of the accident.

(6) *Allowance on Accidental Disability Retirement:* Upon retirement for accidental disability a member shall receive a retirement allowance which shall consist of:

(a) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated contribution at the time of his retirement, and

(b) A pension, in addition to the annuity, of sixty-six and two-thirds (66 2/3%) per centum of his final compensation, or a pension equal to the amount of retirement allowance provided in subdivision subsection (2) of this Section, whichever is greater.

(c) Upon the death of a member within five years after accidental disability retirement, provided that evidence shall be submitted to the Retirement Board proving that the death of such

member was the natural and proximate result of an accident while in the performance of duty at some definite time and place, and that such death was not the result of willful negligence on his part, and upon application by or on behalf of the dependents of such deceased member the Retirement Board shall grant a pension of one-half the final compensation of such member:

(1) To his/her widow/widower, to continue during his/her widowhood/widowhood; or

(2) If there be no widow/widower, or if the widow/widower dies or remarries before any child of such deceased member shall have attained the age of nineteen years, then to his child or children under said age, divided in such manner as the Retirement Board in its discretion shall determine, to continue as a joint and survivor pension of one-half of his final compensation until every such child dies or attains said age; or

(3) If there be no widow/widower or child under the age of nineteen (19) years surviving such deceased member, then to his dependent father or mother, as the deceased member shall have nominated by written designation, duly acknowledged and filed with the retirement board; or there be no such nomination, then to his dependent father or to his dependent mother, as the retirement board in its discretion shall direct, to continue for life.

(7) *Re-examination of Members Retired on Account of Disability:* Once each year the Retirement Board director of personnel may, and upon his application by a disability petitioner shall, require any said disability pensioner if under the minimum age for service retirement to undergo a medical examination,

such examination to be made at the place of residence of the pensioner or other place mutually agreed upon, by a physician or physicians engaged by the **Retirement Board director of personnel**. Should any such pensioner refuse to submit to such examination, his pension may be ~~discounted discontinued~~ until his withdrawal of such refusal, and should his refusal continue for a year, all his rights in and to such pension may be revoked by the Retirement Board. If the examination indicates that the disability of the pensioner has been removed, his name shall be placed on such appropriate lists of candidates as are prepared for appointment to a position in his department for which he is stated to be qualified in a salary grade comparable to that from which he was last retired. Upon reinstatement to active service at the salary grade comparable to that from which he was last retired, he shall be reinstated as a member and participate in the benefits of the retirement system with credit for service rendered prior to disability ~~requirement retirement~~ and for the period during which he received the disability ~~requirement retirement~~ allowance, provided that he did not refuse to accept such reinstatement when it was first offered to him; in the event of such refusal, the pension shall be discontinued and any rights to further benefits under the retirement system shall be based solely on his service rendered prior to his disability retirement.

(8) *Accidental Death Benefit:* Upon the accidental death of a member before retirement, provided that evidence shall be submitted to the Retirement Board providing that the death of such member was the natural and proximate result of an accident while in the performance of duty at some definite time and place and that such death was not the result of willful negligence on his part, his accumulated contributions shall be paid to his estate, or to such person

having an insurable interest in his life as he shall have nominated by written designation, duly executed and filed with the Retirement Board, and upon application by or on behalf of the dependents of such deceased member the Retirement Board shall grant a pension of one-half the final compensation of such member:

(a) To his/her widow/widower, to continue during his/her widowhood/widowhood; or

(b) If there be no widow/widower, or if the widow/widower dies or remarries before any child of such deceased member shall have attained the age of nineteen years, then to his child or children under said age, divided in such manner as the Retirement Board in its discretion shall determine, to continue as a joint and survivor pension of one-half of his final compensation until every such child dies or attains said age; or

(c) If there be no widow/widower or child under the age of nineteen years surviving such deceased member, then to his dependent father or mother, as the deceased member shall have nominated by written designation, duly acknowledged and filed with the Retirement Board; or if there be no such nomination, then to his dependent father or to his dependent mother, as the Retirement Board in its discretion shall direct, to continue for life.

(9) *Deferred Retirement Benefit:* Any employee who has ten (10) or more years of total service may retire upon his written application to the Retirement Board setting forth at what time, not less than thirty (30) nor more than ninety (90) days subsequent to the execution and filing thereof, he desires to be retired, provided that the said member, at the time so specified for his retirement, shall have fulfilled the above

service requirement and notwithstanding that, during such period of notification, he may have separated from service.

(10) *Allowance Upon Deferred Retirement:* Upon deferred retirement a member shall receive a deferred retirement allowance commencing at minimum retirement age calculated in the same manner as provided in ~~subdivision subsection~~ (2) of this Section.

(11) *Restoration to Service:* Should a beneficiary retired on a service retirement allowance or a deferred retirement benefit be restored to service he shall again become a member and any election of an optional benefit shall be null and void. If payment of his retirement allowance has commenced, such allowance shall cease. Upon subsequent retirement, if he has completed one (1) year of service following his restoration, he shall receive a retirement allowance based on his total service before and after his restoration to service; otherwise, his retirement allowance shall be equal to the sum of the retirement allowance computed as of the date of his previous retirement and the retirement allowance computed on the basis of his service subsequent to restoration.

(12) *Withdrawal and Ordinary Death Benefit:* Benefits upon withdrawal and ordinary death shall be payable as follows:

(a) A member who withdraws from service or ceases to be a member for any reason other than death or retirement shall be paid on demand the accumulated contributions standing to the credit of his individual account in the annuity savings fund. A member retired on a deferred retirement benefit may elect, prior to the date upon which the first payment on account of his retirement allowance becomes normally due, to receive in lieu of his retirement

allowance the amount of the accumulated contributions standing to the credit of his individual account in the annuity savings fund. Payment of such amount shall constitute a full and complete discharge of any further claim by him or any beneficiary claiming through him for benefits under this article.

(b) Should a member die before retirement or should a retired member die within thirty (30) days after the date upon which the first payment on account of his retirement allowance becomes normally due, his accumulated contributions less the amount of any retirement allowance payments he may have received, shall be paid to his estate, or to such person as he shall have nominated by written designation, duly executed and filed with the retirement board.

(c) Should a member who has attained minimum retirement age and who dies before retirement without his having made an election under the provisions of Section 17-190 ~~hereby~~ of this article be survived by a spouse, such spouse shall be entitled, in lieu of return of the member's accumulated contributions as provided under paragraph (b) of this ~~subdivision subsection~~ (12), to a benefit determined in the same manner as it would have been determined had the member retired from service on the date of his death and made an effective election of a reduced retirement allowance in accordance with Option 2 under Section 17-190 ~~hereof~~ of this article and nominated his spouse as his designated beneficiary.

(d) Upon the death of a retired member who has not made an optional selection as provided in Section 17-190 ~~hereof~~ of this article or upon the death of the survivor of a retired member and the beneficiary under an optional selection as provided in Section 17-190 ~~hereof~~ of this article, if such optional selection has been made

and become effective, a payment shall be made to the estate of the retired member, or to the estate of the survivor as the case may be, or to such person as the retired member shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and filed with the Retirement Board in an amount equal to the excess, if any, of the retired member's normal accumulated contributions at retirement over the sum of the payment made on account of his pension and normal annuity, plus the excess, if any, of the retired member's excess accumulated contributions at retirement over the payments made on account of his excess annuity.

(e) Upon the death of any Class B member who at the time of his death was eligible to retire from service, if no accidental death benefit is payable and if an effective election of an optional benefit has not been made under Section 17-190, a retirement allowance equal to sixty-seven and one-half ( $67\frac{1}{2}$ ) percent of the retirement allowance, exclusive of any excess annuity, that would have been paid to such member had he retired shall be paid to his surviving spouse for her lifetime until she remarries, or if there be no surviving spouse or the surviving spouse remarries, then to his dependent children until they attain eighteen (18) years of age. The benefit provided under this paragraph (e) shall be in lieu of any benefit under paragraph (c) of this subdivision (12) and shall be payable only if it exceeds the benefit otherwise provided under said paragraph (c).

(f) Upon the death of any Class B member who has retired from service, if no pension is payable pursuant to paragraph (c) of subdivision (6) of this Section, a pension equal to sixty-seven and one-half ( $67\frac{1}{2}$ ) percent of the retirement allowance, exclusive of any excess annuity, paid to such retired member shall be paid to his surviving spouse, for her lifetime

until she remarries, or if there be no surviving spouse or the surviving spouse remarries, then to his dependent children until they attain the age of eighteen (18).

(13) *Eligibility for an Allowance:* The eligibility for a retirement allowance and the amount of such allowance shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the article to provide for the retirement of employees of the City of Providence as in effect on the last day of a member's employment.

(14) Additional Benefits for retired Class A employees and their beneficiaries: ~~As to retired Class A employees, as of January 1, 1992, the benefits for persons retired prior to January 1, 1992, or their beneficiaries shall be adjusted as follows: The benefits of any retired Class A employee or the beneficiary of such person who retired after the completion of twenty-five (25) years of service shall be increased to a base monthly retirement allowance of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) per month; Effective January 1, 1993, the benefits for any retired Class A employee who retired prior to January 1, 1993 or his beneficiary shall be adjusted to provide a minimum monthly retirement allowance of six hundred eighteen dollars (\$618.00); provided, however, if the member elected to receive a reduced retirement allowance in accordance with the available options, said five hundred dollars six hundred eighteen dollar minimum monthly allowance shall be reduced to reflect the option selected. In the event the Class A employees has completed less than twenty-five (25) years of service, he or his beneficiary shall be entitled to receive 1/25th of the above minimum benefits monthly retirement allowance for each year of his service. Effective January 1, 1993, the benefits for any retired Class A employee who retired prior to January 1, 1993 or his beneficiary shall~~

be adjusted to provide a base monthly retirement allowance of six hundred eighteen dollars (\$618.00) per month with the same qualifying factors as above.

(15) Additional Benefits for retired Class B employees and their beneficiaries: As to retired Class B employees, effective January 1, 1992, the benefits for persons who retired prior to January 1, 1992 or their beneficiaries shall be adjusted as follows: The benefits of any retired Class B employee or the beneficiary of such person who retired after completion of twenty-five (25) years of service shall be increased to a base monthly retirement allowance of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) per month; Effective January 1, 1993, the benefit for any retired Class B employees who retired prior to January 1, 1993 or his beneficiary shall be adjusted to provide a minimum monthly retirement allowance of six hundred thirty dollars (\$630.00); provided, however, if the member elected to receive a reduced retirement allowance in accordance with the available options, said five hundred dollar six hundred-thirty dollar minimum monthly allowance shall be reduced to reflect the option elected.

In the event the retired Class B employee has completed less than twenty-five (25) years of service, he or his beneficiary shall be entitled to receive 1/25th of the above minimum monthly retirement allowance benefits for each year of his service. Effective January 1, 1993, the benefit for any retired Class B employee who retired prior to January 1, 1993 or his beneficiary shall be adjusted to provide a base monthly retirement allowance of six hundred thirty dollars (\$630.0) per month with the same qualifying factors above.

(16) Accrual provisions. In no event shall benefits payable under section 17-189 of the Code

of Ordinances be less than that which accrued as of September 2, 1995 based upon the benefit provisions in effect at that time.

(17) Reserved.

(18) Reserved.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 9, 2-8-91; Ord. 1994, ch. 94-2, §§ 1-3, 1-10-94; Ord. 1995, ch. 95-17, §§ 3-7, 7-31-95; Ord. 1996, ch. 96-57, § 1, 12-30-96)

#### *Section 17-190. Options.*

Until the first payment on account of a retirement allowance becomes normally due, any member may elect to convert the retirement allowance, otherwise payable on his account after retirement, into a retirement allowance of equivalent actuarial value of one (1) of the optional forms named below. However, an election of an optional benefit shall not be effective until sixty (60) days after the date of the filing of the election thereof with the Retirement Board, or until thirty (30) days after the date upon which the first payment on account of his retirement allowance becomes normally due, whichever is the later, and should the member die before such election becomes effective, the benefits payable on his account shall be the same as though his election had not been filed and he had not been retired. Such optional retirement allowances shall be payable throughout life with the provisions that:

(1) Option 1. If he dies before he has received in payments the present value of his retirement allowance as it was at the time of his retirement, the balance shall be paid to his legal representatives, or such person having an insurable interest in his life, as he, his wife spouse, or his guardian so electing shall nominate by written designation duly acknowledged and filed with the Retirement Board.

(2) Option 2. Upon his death, his lesser retirement allowance shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person having an insurable interest in his life, as he, his ~~wife~~ spouse, or his guardian so electing shall nominate by written designation duly acknowledged and filed with the Retirement Board at the time of his retirement.

(3) Option 3. Upon his death, one-half of his lesser retirement allowance shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person having an insurable interest in his life, as he, his ~~wife~~ spouse, or his guardian so electing shall nominate by written designation duly acknowledged and filed with the Retirement Board at the time of his retirement.

(4) Option 4. Some other benefit or benefits shall be paid to either the beneficiary or to such person or persons as he, his ~~wife~~ spouse, or his guardian, so electing, shall nominate, provided such other benefit or benefits together with such lesser retirement allowance, shall be certified by the actuary of the retirement system to be of equivalent actuarial value to his benefit and shall be approved by the Retirement Board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this ~~s~~Section 10, any member who has attained minimum retirement age may elect, in accordance with Option 2, 3 or 4 above, a reduced retirement allowance with provision for benefits to his spouse or to a person having an insurable interest in his life other than his ~~wife~~ spouse. Such benefits shall be determined as of the date of his death or retirement, if prior thereto, in accordance with the provisions of the option elected and shall be in lieu of the return of the member's accumulated contributions as provided under paragraph (b) of ~~subdivision subsection~~ (12) of Section 17-189 hereof of this article. In the event of death prior to retirement,

the benefit payable to the designated beneficiary shall be determined in the same manner as it would have been determined had the member retired from service on the date of his death. However, such election of an optional benefit shall not be effective until sixty days after the date of the filing of the election thereof with the Retirement Board. After such election shall have become effective it shall be irrevocable except in the event that the designated beneficiary predeceases the member prior to his retirement.

Any married member who prior to October 1, 1968 had made an election naming his spouse as beneficiary in accordance with the provisions of the preceding paragraph of this Section 10 may revoke such election at any time prior to the date of his actual retirement.

Notwithstanding any provision hereof to the contrary, the Retirement Board shall, upon written request by any Class B employee, permit any such employee to change any option previously elected pursuant to the provisions of this Section 10 to receive benefits payable in accordance with the maximum pension provisions of Section 17-189 hereof.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 10, 2-8-91)

*Section 17-191. Pensions Offset by Compensation Benefits.*

Any amounts paid or payable under the provisions of any worker's compensation law, or as the result of any action for damages for personal injuries against the City of Providence, on account of death or disability of a member, shall be offset against and payable in lieu of any benefits payable out of funds provided by the City under the provisions of this article on account of the death or disability of the member. If the value of the total commuted benefits under

any such worker's compensation law or action is less than the present value on an actuarial basis of the benefits otherwise payable under these provisions this article, then the difference shall be payable under the provisions of this article.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 11, 2-8-91)

*Section 17-192. Elective Officers.*

(1) Persons who have served as mayor, or as a city councilmen member, for at least ten full legislative years since January 1, 1941, or as mayor, or city councilmen, for at least eight full legislative years since January 1, 1961, hereinafter collectively referred to as elective officers, and who have reached the age of fifty-two (52), or have served twenty (20) consecutive years as an elective officer of the City of Providence prior to reaching such age, or have become totally and permanently disabled prior to reaching such age, whether or not such persons are now serving as elective officers or are serving as such at the time of attaining said age or becoming so disabled, shall be entitled to a retirement allowance as provided in this section.

(2) Said retirement allowance shall be computed at the rate of one hundred (\$100.00) dollars per annum for each year, or fraction thereof, as an elective officer of the City of Providence from January 1, 1941 to September 30, 1968, and at the rate of one hundred fifty (\$150.00) dollars per annum for a full year of service as an elective officer of the City of Providence from October 1, 1968 to September 30, 1969, and at the rate of two hundred (\$200.00) dollars per annum for each year, or fraction thereof, as an elective officer of the City of Providence from October 1, 1969 to September 30, 1971, and at the rate of three hundred and fifty (\$350.00) dollars per

annum for each year, or fraction thereof, as an elective officer of the City from September 30, 1971, and since any withdrawal of his contributions as provided in subdivision subsection (6) of this Section; provided, however, that the total number of full years of service for which an allowance shall be paid shall not exceed twenty (20) years.; except as provided in the last sentence of subdivision (6) of this Section. Said retirement allowance shall include credit for each year or portion of any year served by said elective officer on active duty with the United States Armed Forces which said credit shall be computed at the rate of three hundred and fifty (\$350.00) dollars per annum for each full year or portion thereof of said military service.; provided, however, that said credit for military service shall only apply to those persons who were elective officers for any period of time from January 1, 1971 or thereafter; provided, however, that said retirement allowance shall be computed at the rate of three hundred and fifty (\$350.00) dollars per annum for each year, or fraction thereof, as an elective officer, including military service time for any person who served as an elective officer for any period of time from January 1, 1971 to July 1, 1974.

Any elective officer in office from January 1, 1971 may, by written notice filed with the Retirement Board prior to October 1, 1974, elect to pay to the annuity savings fund in such a manner as shall be prescribed by said Board, an additional amount of fifty (\$50.00) dollars per year for each full year, or fraction thereof, as an elective officer of the City of Providence from January 1, 1941 to September 30, 1973.

Upon such payment, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, such amount shall become part of his accumulated contributions and the period of service on account of which such payment was made shall be included in his

retirement allowance at the rate of three hundred and fifty (\$350.00) dollars per year for each year, or fraction thereof, served; provided, however, that the total number of full years of service for which an allowance shall be paid shall not exceed twenty years, except as provided in the last sentence of subdivision (6) of this Section.

(3) Said retirement allowance shall not be paid to any person otherwise entitled thereto while he is receiving compensation from the City or any of its agencies, commissions or bureaus boards, except to the extent that said retirement allowance may exceed such compensation.

(4) Said retirement allowance shall not be paid to any elective officer who has been removed from office pursuant to the provisions of the charter of the City Providence Home Rule Charter of 1980 or who, while receiving said retirement allowance, is finally convicted of a felony or other crime involving moral turpitude.

(5) Eligibility for and the continuance of any benefit payable under this Section on account of total and permanent disability shall be subject to medical examinations made at the request of the Retirement Board in accordance with the provisions of subdivisions subsections (3), (5) and (7) of Section 17-189 of this article.

(6) Each elective officer of the City who is in office on January 1, 1973 or who subsequently thereto becomes an elective officer, shall contribute three hundred and fifty (\$350.) dollars per annum of his compensation toward the cost of the benefits provided hereunder. Such contributions with accumulated interest may be withdrawn at any time prior to the commencement of payments hereunder, provided that upon such withdrawal all rights accrued under

this Section with respect to any service rendered prior to the date of such withdrawal shall terminate. Should a former elective officer elect not to withdraw such contributions with interest as above provided, no interest shall be credited to his contributions after four (4) years shall have elapsed since he ceased to be an elective officer. Required contributions hereunder from elective officers shall cease after twenty (20) years of service, and any contributions heretofore deducted for service in excess of twenty years prior to October 1, 1972 shall at the option of the elective officer concerned be refunded or applied toward the purchase of retirement benefits under the provisions hereof in excess of twenty years, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding.

(7) (a) Contributions under this Section of an elective officer who dies before retirement allowance payments commence as provided hereunder, shall be repaid with accumulated interest to his estate or designated beneficiary. Upon the death after retirement of an elective officer who has not made an optional selection as provided in subsection (9) of this Section or upon the death of the survivor of a retired elective officer and the beneficiary under an optional selection as provided in said subsection (9) of this Section, if such optional selection has been made and become effective, a payment shall be made to the estate of the retired elective officer, or to the estate of the survivor as the case may be, or to such person as the retired elective officer shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and filed with the Retirement Board in an amount equal to the excess, if any of the retired elective officer's contributions as an elective officer with interest accumulated to the date of commencement of his retirement allowance over the retirement allowance payments made in accordance with the provisions of this Section.



(b) In the event a person who was an elective officer ~~on and after January 1, 1979~~, shall be deceased and who

(1) Served the required number of years necessary for benefits as an elective officer under this article but had not yet attained the age of fifty-two (52) years; or

(2) Was collecting benefits under the provisions of this act; then and in such events, upon the date of his death, a benefit of one-half of that amount to which said person would have been entitled under the provisions hereof had he survived or he was collecting, will be paid to his surviving widow/widower so long as said surviving widow/widower shall remain sole and unmarried and said benefits shall cease immediately upon the death or remarriage of surviving widow/widower.

(8) An elective officer of the City of Providence holding office on ~~January 1, 1978~~, may, by written notice filed with the Retirement Board, elect to pay the annuity savings fund in such a manner as shall be prescribed by said Board and in an amount determined by said Board for any fraction of a year during which said public official was elected for the purpose of obtaining full credit for such year.

(9) (8) An elective officer may make an optional selection under the same terms and conditions as provided in Section 17-190 hereof of this article in respect of to the retirement allowance otherwise payable to him in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

(10) (9) The provisions hereof of this section are in addition to and supplemental to the benefits provided under any other sections of this article as amended and nothing contained in this Section shall adversely affect any

present or future rights arising out of membership in any city or state retirement system including that provided in ~~the this~~ article. as amended. Any conflict or inconsistency between this Section and any other Sections of this article as amended shall be resolved in favor of accomplishing the intention of this Section and said conflict or inconsistent provisions shall be waived or superseded insofar as the other Sections of this article are concerned.

(11) (10) The city council of the City of Providence shall from time to time upon the advice of the finance director appropriate such sums as may be necessary to carry out the provisions hereof of this section. Any such sums thus appropriated shall be separately administered for the payment of the retirement allowances herein provided in this section.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 12, 2-8-91)

#### Section 17-193. Exemption from Taxation, Assignment and Execution.

Effective January 1, 1985, the right of a member or beneficiary to a pension, an annuity, a retirement allowance, to the return of contributions, any benefit or right accrued or accruing to any person under the provisions of this article, and the monies in the various funds created hereunder, shall be exempt from any municipal tax, or state tax except for the personal income tax imposed under the provisions of chapter 30 of title 44 of the general laws as amended, and, except as specifically provided under this chapter, they shall not be assignable, subject to execution, garnishment, attachment, the operation of bankruptcy or insolvency law or any other similar process of law. If any provision of this Section or the application thereof shall for any reason be judged invalid, such a judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate

the remainder of the law, but shall be confined in its effect to the provision or application directly involved in the controversy giving rise to the judgment.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 13, 2-8-91)

*Section 17-194193. Protection Against Fraud.*

Every person who knowingly or willfully makes or presents or in any wise procures the making or presentation of any false or fraudulent affidavit or affirmation concerning any claim for pension or payment thereof, shall in every case forfeit a sum not exceeding two hundred and fifty (\$250.00) dollars, to be sued and recovered by and in the name of the Retirement Board of the City of Providence on behalf of the employee retirement system, and when recovered, paid over to and thereupon become a part of the funds of the retirement system.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 14, 2-8-91)

*Section 17-195. Former Members of Retirement System Employed by Chapin Hospital or City Health Department Transferred to State Retirement System.*

Anything to the contrary in this act notwithstanding, the following provisions shall apply with respect to any member who was an employee of the city by reason of his employment at the Charles V. Chapin Hospital or in the city health department and who, on or after October 1, 1965 and prior to his attainment of age sixty (60), becomes a member of the employees' retirement system of the State of Rhode Island.

(1) Membership of such a member shall cease as of the date he ceases to be an employee of

the City or becomes an employee of the school department thereof and he shall have no rights under the system except as hereinafter provided in this Section 17-195.

(2) All funds held in the employees' retirement system of the City of Providence on account of such a member which are attributable to his own contributions shall be transferred to the proper fund in the employees' retirement system of the State of Rhode Island and such transfer shall be a complete discharge of all liability of this system with respect thereto; provided, however, that any excess of the amount of such funds over the amount certified by the Retirement Board of the employees' retirement system of the State of Rhode Island to be equal to the contribution credits which he would then have had under such system if the entire period of service credited to him under this system had been rendered as an employee of the State of Rhode Island, shall be paid to him in a single lump sum on or before May 1, 1967.

(3) In addition, there shall be transferred an amount which, when taken with the funds transferred in accordance with subdivision (2) above, shall be equal to the amount certified by the Retirement Board of the employees' retirement system of the State of Rhode Island as being required to provide service credit in such system for all purposes thereof for all service rendered the City of Providence; provided, however, that if the funds held hereunder on account of such members which are not attributable to their own contributions are not sufficient to provide such amount, the City of Providence shall contribute to the state system the deficit.

(4) Upon payment of the amounts herein provided, the employee shall be credited under

the state system with all service and benefits that he would have had thereunder if all his City employment had been as an employee of the state.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 15, 2-8-91)

**Section 17-196. Former Welfare Employees Covered by Retirement System:**

Anything to the contrary in this article notwithstanding, the following provisions shall apply with respect to any member who was an employee of the City by reason of his employment as a welfare employee the cost of whose pay is reimbursed by the State of Rhode Island and who, on or after July 1, 1970, becomes a member of the employees' retirement system of the State of Rhode Island as the result of his transfer to the service of the state.

(1) Membership of such a member shall cease as of the date he ceases to be an employee of the City and he shall have no rights under the system except as hereinafter provided in this Section 17-196.

(2) All funds held in the employees' retirement system of the City of Providence on account of such a member which are attributable to his own contributions shall be transferred to the proper fund in the employees' retirement system of the State of Rhode Island and such transfer shall be a complete discharge of all liability of this system with respect thereto; provided, however, that any excess of the amount of such funds over the amount certified by the Retirement Board of the employees' retirement system of the State of Rhode Island to be equal to the contribution credits which he would then have had under such system if the entire period of service credited to him under this system had been rendered as an employee

of the State of Rhode Island, shall be paid to him in a single lump sum on or before July 31, 1972.

(3) In addition, there shall be transferred an amount which, when taken with the funds transferred in accordance with subdivision (2) above, shall be equal to the amount certified by the Retirement Board of the employees' retirement system of the State of Rhode Island as being required to provide service credit in such system for all purposes thereof for all service rendered the City of Providence; provided, however, that if the funds held hereunder on account of such members which are not attributable to their own contributions are not sufficient to provide such amount, the City of Providence shall contribute to the state system the deficit.

(4) Upon payment of the amounts herein provided, the employee shall be credited under the state system with all service and benefits that he would have had thereunder if all his City employment had been as an employee of the state.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 16, 2-8-91)

**Section 17-197 194. Cost of Living Adjustment.**

All retired Class B employees of the City of Providence and all beneficiaries of such employees who receive any service or any ordinary disability retirement allowances, or any accidental disability retirement allowance pursuant to the provisions of this article shall, on the first day of January next following the third anniversary date of his/her retirement, receive a cost of living retirement adjustment, in addition to the retirement allowance, in an amount equal to three (3) percent of the his

monthly retirement allowance, not compounded, on up to the first ten one thousand dollars ~~(\$10,000.00)~~ (\$1,000.00) of said retirement allowance. For the purpose of said computation, credit shall be given for a full calendar year, regardless of the effective date of said retirement allowance. In each succeeding year thereafter, on the first day of January, the original monthly retirement allowance shall be increased by three (3) percent, not compounded, on up to the first ten one thousand dollars ~~(\$10,000.00)~~ (\$1,000.00) of the said original retirement allowance, to be continued during the lifetime of said retired employee or beneficiary. Any cost-of-living retirement adjustment granted to a retired employee or any beneficiary of said employee under this section shall be considered a voluntary gratuities gratuity. The payment of such voluntary gratuities gratuity may be reduced or suspended by ordinance at any time upon a finding by the city council that due to the existence of a depressed economy affecting the fiscal condition of the city it becomes expedient to reduce the expenses in order to avoid or minimize a tax increase.

(Ord. 1991, ch. 91-5, § 17, 2-8-91; Ord. 1995, ch. 95-17, § 9, 7-31-95; Ord. 1996, ch. 96-4, § 1, 2-23-96)

Section 2: This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage.

COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS moves that the Ordinance be Read and Passed the Second Time, as amended.

This motion is seconded by COUNCILMAN DeLUCA.

COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS submits an amendment to the proposed Ordinance.

COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS withdraws her first motion.

COUNCILMAN DeLUCA withdraws his second.

COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS moves to amend the Ordinance by adding paragraphs (e) and (f).

This motion is seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS, put to vote and passed.

COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS moves that the Ordinance be Read and Passed, the Second Time, as amended on a Roll Call Vote.

This motion is seconded by COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO.

COUNCILMAN LOMBARDI moves that the Ordinance be Referred Back to the Committee on Ordinances.

This motion is seconded by COUNCILMAN MANCINI.

---

## AT EASE

**The Council stands at ease at 8:10 o'clock  
P.M.**

## RECONVENTION

**The City Council reconvenes at 8:14 o'clock  
P.M.**

## PRESENTATION OF ORDINANCES

### **COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI:**

An Ordinance in amendment of Chapter 12, Article III, of the Code of Ordinances entitled "Garbage, Trash and Refuse".

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI  
Refers the Ordinance to the Committee on  
Ordinances.**

**The motion to Refer is Sustained.**

---

**COUNCILMAN ROLLINS and COUNCIL-  
MAN ALLEN (By Request):**

An Ordinance in amendment of and in addition to Chapter 1980-27 of the Ordinance of the City of Providence approved May 3, 1980 and entitled, "An Ordinance approving and adopting the Official Redevelopment Plan for the Charles Street Renewal Project" for the acquisition of Lots 14 (578 Charles Street) and 15 (574 Charles Street) on Plat 71.

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI  
Refers the Ordinance to the Committee on  
Urban Redevelopment, Renewal and  
Planning.**

**The motion to Refer is Sustained.**

---

## PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI:**

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to cause the installation of a "Stop" sign at Isabella and Longwood Avenues.

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI Refers the Resolution to the Committee on Public Works.**

**The motion to Refer is Sustained.**

---

**COUNCILMAN ALLEN:**

Resolution Requesting the Department of Planning and Development to complete a land use survey of the area bounded by Potters, Noyes, Huntington and Calhoun Avenues and to recommend changes, if deemed necessary, to "Providence 2000: The Comprehensive Plan" and the "Providence Zoning Ordinance".

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI Jointly Refers the Resolution to the Committee on Ordinances and the Committee on Urban Redevelopment, Renewal and Planning.**

**The motion to Refer is Sustained.**

---

**COUNCILMAN CLARKIN (By Request):**

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along Charlesfield Street, between Hope Street and Brook Street, and cause the installation of "No Parking on Either Side" signs beginning on Wednesday, May 13, 1998 at 11:00 o'clock P.M. and also prohibit motor vehicle traffic and cause the installation of a "Do Not Enter" sign from 12:00 Noon to 1:00 o'clock P.M. on Thursday, May 14, 1998, from Brown University's Annual National Peace Officers' Memorial Day Service.

*Resolved,* That the Traffic Engineer is requested to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along Charlesfield Street, between Hope Street and Brook Street, and cause the installation of "No Parking on Either Side" signs beginning on Wednesday, May 13, 1998 at 11:00 o'clock P.M. and also prohibit motor vehicle traffic and cause the installation of a "Do Not Enter" sign from 12:00 Noon to 1:00 o'clock P.M. on Thursday, May 14, 1998, from Brown University's Annual National Peace Officers' Memorial Day Service.

---

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along East Manning Street between Governor Street and Ives Street on Sunday, May 24, 1998 between 3:00 o'clock P.M. and 7:00 o'clock P.M. to accommodate Graduation Exercises.

*Resolved,* That the Traffic Engineer is requested to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along East Manning Street between Governor Street

and Ives Street on Sunday, May 24, 1998 between 3:00 o'clock P.M. and 7:00 o'clock P.M. to accommodate Graduation Exercises.

---

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along half of South Main Street from Tockwotton Street to India Street and half of India Street from South Main Street to Benefit Street on July 24 and 25 from 6:00 o'clock P.M. to 1:00 o'clock A.M. and July 26, 1998 from 4:00 o'clock P.M. to 1:00 o'clock A.M. to accommodate the Holy Rosary Band Club.

*Resolved*, That the Traffic Engineer is requested to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along half of South Main Street from Tockwotton Street to India Street and half of India Street from South Main Street to Benefit Street on July 24 and 25 from 6:00 o'clock P.M. to 1:00 o'clock A.M. and July 26, 1998 from 4:00 o'clock P.M. to 1:00 o'clock A.M. to accommodate the Holy Rosary Band Club.

---

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along various streets on Saturday, May 16, 1998 from 6:00 o'clock A.M. to 5:00 o'clock P.M. for students moving out of their dormitories at Brown University, and also request the Chief of Police to relax tagging on this day in the University Area.

*Resolved*, That the Traffic Engineer is requested to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along various streets on Saturday, May 16, 1998 from 6:00 o'clock A.M. to 5:00 o'clock P.M. for students

moving out of their dormitories at Brown University, and also request the Chief of Police to relax tagging on this day in the University Area.

Wriston/Keeney Quad Areas:

George Street one-way east from Brown Street to Thayer Street

Charlesfield Street one-way west from Thayer Street to Brown Street

Benevolent Street one-way east from Magee Street to Brown Street

Brown Street one-way north from Charlesfield Street to George Street

Post and enforce "No Parking/Emergency Tow Zone" on the west side of Magee Street from George Street to Benevolent Street.

---

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along various streets during various times beginning Friday, May 23, 1997 and ending Monday, May 26, 1997, in celebration of Brown University's 230th Annual Commencement Activities.

*Resolved*, That the Traffic Engineer is requested to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along various streets during various times beginning Friday, May 22, 1997 and ending Monday, May 25, 1998, in celebration of Brown University's 230th Annual Commencement Activities as follows.

Friday, May 22 — 9:00 P.M. — 1:00 A.M.  
Campus Dance, College Green

Saturday, May 23 — 11:45 A.M. — 12:45 P.M.  
Inauguration of President Gee, Main Green

12:00 P.M. — 4:00 P.M. Alumni Field Day,  
Athletic Center

9:00 P.M. — 11:00 P.M. Pops Concert, Main  
Green

Sunday, May 24 — 12:30 P.M. — 3:00 P.M.  
Baccalaureate Service, First Baptist Church

Monday, May 25 — 8:30 A.M. — 1:30 P.M.  
Commencement Exercises, First Baptist  
Church, College Green

**Severally Read and Collectively Passed,  
on motion of COUNCILWOMAN Di-  
RUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN  
WILLIAMS.**

**The motion for Passage is Sustained.**

## PERSONAL EXPRESSION

**COUNCILMAN CLARKIN requests the privilege of the floor to speak on a point of personal expression and states:**

I just want to speak on two things that I know that by my speaking out, it still won't change anything, but I still want to say what is on my mind. Recently in the Rhode Island House, I saw that a bill was introduced to mandate the teaching of the Potato Famine in Ireland. Being of Irish descent, this tragedy does mean something to me. But I have to ask where does it end? Should we have to teach about all the troubles all over the world? How about the Cambodian killing fields, or the American massacre in the early 1900's? Our schools should be teaching the basics and not those issues that are politically correct. Just the other day, our US House of Representatives made a big stand

about religious freedom in other countries. It seems that we want to force other countries to accept our concept of religious freedom. Do you know what we accept as religion? Witchcraft is a religion; Scientology is a religion; Madilyn Murray O'Hare, the noted atheist was recognized as being the head of a religion. Anyone that wants to pray to a rock or contemplate their navel can be designated as a religion. A few years ago we had Hare Krishna's begging at the Airports. They had to be allowed to beg because they were a religion. Who the hell do we think we are demanding that other countries accept our concept of what a religion is. Just because the United States of America is stupid in what our Government accepts as a religion. Does that mean that other countries also have to be stupid?



**COUNCILMAN LOMBARDI** requests the privilege of the floor to speak on a point of personal expression and states:

On Saturday at 12:00 will be the kickoff of the Pirate Ship at Cookson America. It will travel from Dorrance Street and continue to Memorial Boulevard to College Street Bridge to

South Main Street, Prospect Street, Benefit Street, North Main Street, Collier Point Park to Weybosset Street, and many streets in between. This will be a very exciting piece of the puzzle for the City of Providence. Saturday is the kick off at Cookson America and the Mayor and elected officials have the first voyage.

## PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS

**COUNCILMAN HASSETT and COUNCILMAN IGLIOZZI:**

Resolution Requesting the President of the City Council to empanel a "Special Commission to Study the Effect of Non-Taxable Institutions on Providence's Tax Base."

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI** Refers the Resolution to the Committee on Finance.

The motion to Refer is Sustained.

**COUNCILMAN IGLIOZZI:**

Resolution Requesting the Chief Electrical Inspector to upgrade the street lighting on Glenbridge Avenue, Moorefield Street, Merino Street, Eastwood Avenue, Alverson Avenue and Cleveland Street.

*Resolved*, That the Chief Electrical Inspector is requested to upgrade the street lighting on Glenbridge Avenue, Moorefield Street, Merino Street, Eastwood Avenue, Alverson Avenue and Cleveland Street.

**COUNCILMAN ROLLINS (By Request):**

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along California Avenue from Narragansett Boulevard to Virginia Avenue on Friday, June 5, 1998, Saturday, June 6, 1998, Friday, June 12, 1998 and Saturday, June 13, 1998 from 6:00 o'clock P.M. to 11:00 o'clock P.M. to accommodate the Portuguese Feast of the Crown.

*Resolved*, That the Traffic Engineer is requested to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along California Avenue from Narragansett Boulevard to Virginia Avenue on Friday, June 5, 1998, Saturday, June 6, 1998, Friday, June 12, 1998

and Saturday, June 13, 1998 from 6:00 o'clock P.M. to 11:00 o'clock P.M. to accommodate the Portuguese Feast of the Crown.

**The motion to Refer is Sustained.**

---

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along Vermont Avenue from Virginia Avenue to Eddy Street on Saturday, May 9, 1998 from 3:00 o'clock P.M. to 11:00 o'clock P.M. to accommodate the Portuguese Crown Feast.

*Resolved*, That the Traffic Engineer is requested to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along Vermont Avenue from Virginia Avenue to Eddy Street on Saturday, May 9, 1998 from 3:00 o'clock P.M. to 11:00 o'clock P.M. to accommodate the Portuguese Crown Feast.

**Severally Read and Collectively Passed, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS.**

**The motion for Passage is Sustained.**

---

**COUNCILMAN ROLLINS:**

Resolution Requesting the Board of Park Commissioners to rename the Baxter Street Park to "George Sanchez Park".

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI Refers the Resolution to the Committee on Urban Redevelopment, Renewal and Planning.**

**COUNCILWOMAN ROMANO (By Request):**

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along June Street from Berkshire Street to Donelson Street on June 27, 1998 from 1:00 o'clock P.M. to 9:00 o'clock P.M. for a graduation party.

*Resolved*, That the Traffic Engineer is requested to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along June Street from Berkshire Street to Donelson Street on June 27, 1998 from 1:00 o'clock P.M. to 9:00 o'clock P.M. for a graduation party.

**Read and Passed, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS.**

**The motion for Passage is Sustained.**

---

**COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS (By Request):**

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to cause the installation of a "Four-Way Stop" sign at the intersection of Cole Avenue and President Avenue.

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI Refers the Resolution to the Committee on Public Works.**

**The motion to Refer is Sustained.**

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along Woodbury Street between Elmgrove Avenue and Cole Avenue on Monday, May 25, 1998 from 9:00 o'clock A.M. to 9:00 o'clock P.M. to accommodate a Neighborhood Block Party.

*Resolved*, That the Traffic Engineer is requested to prohibit motor vehicle traffic along Woodbury Street between Elmgrove Avenue and Cole Avenue on Monday, May 25, 1998 from 9:00 o'clock A.M. to 9:00 o'clock P.M. to accommodate a Neighborhood Block Party.

**Read and Passed, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS.**

**The motion for Passage is Sustained.**

---

**COUNCILWOMAN YOUNG (By Request):**

Resolution Requesting the Traffic Engineer to replace all missing and illegible traffic signs along Blackstone Street between Prairie Avenue and Broad Street.

*Resolved*, That the Traffic Engineer is requested to replace all missing and illegible traffic signs along Blackstone Street between Prairie Avenue and Broad Street.

**Read and Passed, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS.**

**The motion for Passage is Sustained.**

---

**COUNCILWOMAN YOUNG:**

Resolution Declaring the week of May 18, 1998 through May 24, 1998 as "Child Safety Awareness Week".

*Whereas*, The Children of Providence are our most precious asset; and

*Whereas*, The Children of Providence are our Future; our Hope; our Reason to Search for Justice; and

*Whereas*, The Children of Providence deserve a safe home and environment in which to live and play, — free from injury; free from hurt; free from fear; and

*Whereas*, The Children of Providence should be safe every second, minute and hour of their precious daily lives,

*Now, therefore, be it Resolved*, That the City Council of the City of Providence hereby declares May 18 through May 24, 1998 as "Child Safety Awareness Week".

**Read and Passed, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS.**

**The motion for Passage is Sustained.**

---

## REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

### COUNCILWOMAN JOSEPHINE DiRUZZO, Chairwoman COMMITTEE ON URBAN REDEVELOPMENT, RENEWAL AND PLANNING

**Transmits the following with recommendation the same be severally Adopted:**

An Ordinance in amendment of and in addition to Chapter 1797 of the Ordinances of the City of Providence, approved November 7, 1966, and entitled "An Ordinance approving and adopting the Official Redevelopment Plan for the East Side Project No. R.I.R-4" for the acquisition of Lot 51, 79 North Main Street and Lot 535, 4 Thomas Street, on Plat 10.

---

An Ordinance in amendment of and in addition to Chapter 1983-4 of the Ordinance of the City of Providence approved February 18, 1983 and entitled "An Ordinance approving and adopting the Official Redevelopment Plan for the Silver Lake Revitalization Project" for the acquisition of Lots 422 and 423 on Plat 109, 304 and 308 Pocasset Avenue, respectively.

---

An Ordinance in amendment of and in addition to Chapter 1996-23 of the Ordinance of the City of Providence approved May 23, 1996 and entitled "An Ordinance approving and adopting the Official Redevelopment Plan and the attached restrictions for the Douglas Avenue Revitalization Project" for additional acquisition. (9-11 Goddard Street).

An Ordinance in amendment of and in addition to Chapter 1986-53 of the Ordinance of the City of Providence approved October 23, 1986 and entitled, "An Ordinance approving and adopting the Official Redevelopment Plan for the Special Vacant Lot Project" for the acquisition of additional properties.

**Severally Read and Collectively Passed, the First Time, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS, by the following Roll Call Vote:**

**Ayes:** Council President Fargnoli, Councilmen Allen, Clarkin, DeLuca, Councilwoman DiRuzzo, Councilmen Hassett, Iglioizzi, Jackson, Lombardi, Councilwomen Nolan, Romano, Williams and Young—13.

**Noes:** None.

**Absent:** Councilmen Mancini and Rollins—2.

**The motion for Passage, the First Time, is Sustained.**

---

**Transmits the following with recommendation the same be Approved, as amended:**

Resolution Requesting Submission of the 1998 Rhode Island Overall Economic Development Program.

*Whereas*, Economic development in the City is essential for the creation of jobs for the City residents and the stabilization of the City's tax base;

*Whereas*, Many economic development projects need federal, state and/or local assistance;

*Whereas*, The Rhode Island Overall Economic Development Program (OEDP) is an annually updated listing of projects that are eligible for the federal assistance through the Economic Development Administration;

*Whereas*, It is in the City's interest to insure that projects that create short and long term jobs help the City meet neighborhood needs are eligible for federal assistance by requesting that the projects, some of which are existing projects to be re-submitted and others are new projects, be listed in the Rhode Island Overall Economic Development Program;

*Now, therefore, be it Resolved*, That the following projects be submitted to the Planning Division of the Rhode Island Department of Administration for inclusion in the 1998 Rhode Island Overall Economic Development Program:

1. Gorham Site Clean Up and Industrial Park
2. Public Safety/Hotel
3. Port of Providence
4. Heritage Harbor (Rhode Island Heritage Museum)
5. Downtown Cinema/Garage
6. Sports Museum

**Read and Passed, as amended, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS.**

**The motion for Passage, as amended, is Sustained.**

**COUNCILWOMAN PATRICIA K. NOLAN, Chairwoman  
COMMITTEE ON FINANCE**

**and**

**COUNCILWOMAN RITA M. WILLIAMS, Chairwoman  
COMMITTEE ON ORDINANCES**

**Jointly transmit the following with recommendation the same be Received:**

Petition to hold and/or conduct a Public Hearing regarding any and all proposed amendments relative to the City of Providence Employee's Retirement System pursuant to all

relevant sections of the Providence City Charter, including, but not limited to, Section 411 of said Charter. (Public Hearing was held February 12, 1998).

**COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS**

Report from KPMG relative to the City of Providence, General Purpose Financial Statements and Supplementary Financial Information for the year ended June 30, 1997.

**Received and Referred to the Committee on Finance.**

**The motion to Receive and Refer is Sustained.**

## FROM THE CLERK'S DESK

Petition of S&S Realty Associates, requesting to amend the City of Providence Zoning Ordinance to convert the zoning classification with respect to Plat 58, Lot 165, (commonly known as 1209 Eddy Street), from its present zoning of R-2 to a C-4 zone.

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI Refers the Petition to the Committee on Ordinances.**

**The motion to Refer is Sustained.**

---

## PERSONAL EXPRESSION

**COUNCILMAN ALLEN requests the privilege of the floor to speak on a point of personal expression and states:**

The summer is coming and last evening Councilwoman Romano and I and my significant other had the opportunity to go out socially and frequent a place called Bumblebee's, which I think is in Councilman Jackson's ward. We went there because Councilwoman Romano's brother was playing there, and we had a great, great time. In addition to that we left there, Councilwoman Romano had on her dancing shoes, and we went to Snub's, which is a club on North Main Street where they have every Wednesday night a 10 or 12 piece big band set.

It was a great evening. It was so good that we are asking the council members and their significant other or spouses, we are asking the council staff and we are also inviting the clerk's staff next Wednesday night at 8:00 at Snub's to hear the big band. There is a lot of nice soothing music and some good dancing music for Councilwoman DiRuzzo, and when we leave there at about 9:30 we will go to Bumblebee's and hear Councilwoman Romano's brother play. So it was a good evening and we look forward to next Wednesday, and hope that many of our friends and colleagues can join us for some fun and frolic.

---

## FROM THE CLERK'S DESK

### **Petitions for Compensation for Injuries and Damages, viz:**

AT&T (Steve Packett)

Ann M. Rhodes

Patricia M. Almonte (Andrew J. Murray, Esq.)

Lillian Onasanya

Vanessa Crum

Susan Echevarria

Stephen P. Sheehan

Richard Arruda, Jr. (Kevin J. Phelan, Esq.)

Stewart Taylor

William Aberdeen

Gilda Viti (Metropolitan Property)

Karen A. Fleck (Harry J. Hoopis, Esq.)

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI  
Severally Refers the Petitions to the  
Committee on Claims and Pending Suits.**

**The motion to Refer is Sustained.**

## PERSONAL EXPRESSION

**COUNCILWOMAN YOUNG requests the privilege of the floor to speak on a point of personal expression and states:**

Several weeks ago we had a very tragic incident in this building and you never know who you can depend on in good times or bad times, but we certainly know that there are several people in this building that are always there when you need them. The first one I want to congratulate is Michael Clement. This is not the first time that Michael has been a hero and has been able to assist somebody in need. He did it again during that tragic event the other

week. Not only did Michael Clement go to the rescue of this poor gentlemen, but also Ellen Slater went to his rescue to try to help. Two of the janitors in the building, Eddy Snead and Ray Grunde, and also Ray D'Abate from the Purchasing Department. It took a lot of people to run to that gentlemen and try to assist him in any way possible. I think we need to do a resolution congratulating all these heroes and let them know what a wonderful job they did. If I am ever in danger, I hope I am around Michael Clement, Ellen Slater, Ray D'Abate, and our wonderful janitors Ray Grunde and Eddy Snead.



## PRESENTATION OF CITATIONS

### *"In Congratulations"*

#### **COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI and the MEMBERS of the CITY COUNCIL:**

##### **Citations Extending Congratulations.**

*Resolved*, That the Members of the City Council extend their sincere congratulations to the following:

Mr. and Mrs. John H. Petrarca, in recognition of the celebration of the 25th Wedding Anniversary on May 27, 1998.

Saint Ann's School, in recognition of the celebration of their graduation June 15, 1998.

Esek Hopkins Middle School, in recognition of the celebration of their graduation June 19, 1998.

Windmill Street Elementary School, in recognition of the celebration of their graduation June 19, 1998.

Mr. and Mrs. Albert Pepe, in recognition of the celebration of their 50th Wedding Anniversary.

George and Betty O'Reilly, in recognition of the celebration of their 50th Wedding Anniversary on June 19, 1998.

The Honorable Frank Caprio, in recognition of being the recipient of the 37th Verrazzano Day Award.

Art Coloian, in recognition of the celebration on his passing the Rhode Island Bar.

Providence College Volunteers, Christmas in April, in recognition of their five year milestone in one of the state's largest and most diverse volunteer coalitions.

Ellen J. Slater, in recognition of receiving her Bachelor of Science Degree in Nursing at the University of Rhode Island.

Steven DiLibero, in recognition of receiving his Bachelor of Arts in Political Science Degree at the University of Rhode Island.

Mrs. and Mrs. Milton Moquete, in recognition of the celebration of the birth of their daughter, born on December 16, 1997.

Mrs. and Mrs. Frank Bonilla, in recognition of the celebration of the birth of their son, born on December 18, 1997.

Mrs. and Mrs. Wilson Gonzalez, in recognition of the celebration of the birth of their daughter, born on December 19, 1997.

Mrs. and Mrs. Erick Hereera, in recognition of the celebration of the birth of their son, born on January 2, 1998.

Mrs. and Mrs. Yaya Sossoko, in recognition of the celebration of the birth of their son, born on December 28, 1997.

Mr. and Mrs. John Colafrancisco, in recognition of the celebration of their marriage.

Mr. and Mrs. Juan Rodriguez, in recognition of the celebration of their marriage.

Mr. and Mrs. Anthony Simione, in recognition of the celebration of their marriage.

Fernando Fernandez, in recognition of the celebration of his 78th birthday on May 30, 1998.

Alexander Soto, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Jodennis Castro, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Richard Cuello, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Conrrado Sanchez, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Luis Sanchez, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Jonathan Santos, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Pablo Garcia, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Kevil Mercedez, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Andres Mercedez, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

John Duran, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Albert Martinez, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Robinson Cardona, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Noel Perez, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Edwin Perez, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Emanuel Perez, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33

and his valuable contribution to community service.

Luis Peralta, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #35 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Angel Tapia, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

Argenis Torrez, in recognition of his participation in the Boy Scouts of America, Troop #33 and his valuable contribution to community service.

**Severally Read and Collectively Passed, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN YOUNG.**

**The motion for Passage is Unanimously Sustained.**

## PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS

*"In Memorium"*

**COUNCIL PRESIDENT FARGNOLI and the MEMBERS of the CITY COUNCIL:**

Resolutions Extending Sympathy.

*Resolved*, That the Members of the City Council extend their sincere sympathy to the families of the following:

Frank Notardonato

Ernest Grella, Jr.

Mary F. Medeiros

Sabra Webb Orton

Palmerino "Tommy" Caccia

Michele "Mike" Granieri

Sue Perrotti

Evelyn Fransosi

Angelo A. Mendillo

Amelia E. Rossi

Charles John "Charlie" Thomas, II

Archie R. Johnson, Jr.

**Severally Read and Collectively Passed, by a Unanimous Rising Vote, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS.**

**The motion for Passage is Unanimously Sustained.**

## MATTER NOT APPEARING ON THE PRINTED DOCKET

### PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION

COUNCILWOMAN NOLAN, COUNCILWOMAN YOUNG and COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO:

Resolution Requesting the week of May 17, 1998 to May 23, 1998 be designated National Public Works Week.

*Resolved*, That this week, May 17, 1998 to May 23, 1998 has been designated National Public Works Week, celebrating the people of Public Works; and

*Whereas*, Leaving an imprint on the world in one of life's endearing quest for the men and women of Public Works it is a triumph; and

*Whereas*, The men and women of Public Works are in intrecal part of our residents' every day lives; and

*Whereas*, The Health, Safety and Comfort of our citizenry greatly depends on their services; and

*Whereas*, The lack of City services greatly impacts a neighborhood and stunts the rehabilitation efforts of a community, and

*Whereas*, The Administrators, Supervisors and the men and women of Public Works

recognize this and have put forward progressive programs to clean up our neighborhoods;

*Now, therefore, be it Resolved*, That the Providence City Council proclaims the week of May 17, 1998 as "National Public Works Week", and we salute the men and women of the City of Providence, Department of Public Works and the various departments who fall under the wing of Public Works; that is:

Public Works Administration

Engineering

Environmental Enforcement

Highway

Bridge Maintenance

Sewer & Drainage Inspector

Garage Maintenance

**Read and Passed, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN WILLIAMS.**

**The motion for Passage is Sustained.**

---

## ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, on motion of COUNCILWOMAN DiRUZZO, seconded by COUNCILWOMAN YOUNG, it is voted to adjourn at 8:45 o'clock P.M. (E.D.T.).

*Michael R. Clement*

City Clerk

May 21]

2063

[1998

---